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NOTJCt: 

CAPFIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

20n2022 

NOTICE is hereby given thal the 30th Annual General Meeting of the members of Capfin India 

Limited will be held on Friday, 30th September 2022 at S.OOPM to transact through Video 

Conferencing ("VC") I Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") to transact the following business: 

ORDINARY BUSINESS 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31sl March, 2022 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors 

and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a director In place of Mrs. Sarita Man try (01111392), who retires by rotation 

and being eligible, offers herselffor re-appointment. 

3. To ratify the appointment of Rag & Associates .• Chartered Accountants (ICAI Reg. No. 

541696, FRN - 008653C), as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 

2022-2023 and to fix their remuneration. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: September 7, 2022 
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By Order of the Board 
For Cap fin India Limited 

·Sd· 
Rachlta Mantry Kabra 
Whole Time Director 
DIN: 03414391 



NOT ES: 

CAPFIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

202~2022 

1. As you are aware, in view of the situation arising due to COVID-19 global pandemic, the 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") vide its Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5,2020 read 
with Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020. Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13. 2020 
and Circular No. 02/2022 dated January 13,2022 (collectively referred to as "MCA 
Circularsw) & SEBI circular dated 12/05/ 2020 has permitted the holding of the Annual 
General Meeting ("AGM1 through VC I OAVM, w1thout the physical presence of the 
Members at a common venue. In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
("Act1. SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing 
Regulations") and MCA Circulars, the AGM of the Company Is being held through VC 1 OAVM. 

2. Since, the AGM Is being conducted through VC/OAVM. there is no provision for appointment 
of proxies. Accordingly, appointment of proxies by the members will not be available. Hence, 
the proxy form and attendance slip including route map are not annexed to this notice. 

3. The Members can join lhe EGM/ AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the 
scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned 
in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/ AGM through VC/OAVM will be made 
available for 1 000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more sharcholding), Promoters, Institutional 
Investors. Directors, Key Managerial Personnel. the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Comm1ttee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, 
Auditors etc. who arc (Ill owed to attend the EGM/ AGM without restriction on account of first 
come first served basis. 

4. Corporate members Intending to attend the AGM through authorized representatives are 
requested to send a scanned copy of duly certified copy of the board or governing body 
resolution authorizing the representatives to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting. 
The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutinizer by email through Its 
registered email address to bansal.deepanshu@gmail.com with a copy marked to 
helpdesk.evot•ng@cdsllndia.com 

5. Members attendmg the AGM through VC I OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of 
reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

6. Additional Information, pursuant to Regulation 36 (3), of the Listing Regulations, In respect 
of directors reappointing at the Annual General Meeting is appended hereto and forms part 
of this Notice. 

7. a) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from 24•h September, 2022 to 30o.h September, 2022 (bolh days inclusive). 
b) The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, September 27, 2022 (09:00am) and 

ends on Thursday, September 29, 202 (05:00 pm). No e-voting shall be allowed heyond the 
said date and time. During this period members of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or In dematerialized form. as on the cut-off date of September 23. 2022, may 
cast their vote by remote e-voting. 
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CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

202~2022 

8. Members holding shares in physical form arc requested to intimate immediately to the Registrar 
& Share Transfer Agent of the Company, Indus Portfolio Private Limited, G-65, Bali Nagar, 
and New Delhi 110015 Ph: 011·47671214 quoting registered Folio No. (a) Details of their bank 
account/change in bank account, if any, and (b) change in their address, if any, with pin code 
number. 

In case shares are 10 demat form members are requested to update their bank detail with their 
depository participant. 

The equity share capital of the company is held by 323 sh;~reholdcrs, out of which 1 79 
shareholders holding 96.84% of the capitnl nre In dematerialized form and the balance 144 
shareholders holding 3.16% of the capital arc in physic;~! form. The share holders having 
shares ln physical form are requested to dematerialize the shares at the earliest. 

9. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions, the 
shareholders of the Company may nominate a person in whose name the shares held by 
him/them shall vest in the event of his/their death. Shareholders desi rous of availing this 
facility may submit the requisite nomination form. 

10. Any member requiring further information on the Accounts at the meeting Is requested to send 
the queries In writing to President (Finance) & CFO, at least five days before the meeUng. 

11. In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank details, ECS mandates, nomination, power of 
attorney, change in name/address etc:. tho members are requested to approach the Company's 
Registrars and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of shares held in physical form and the 
respecLive Depository Particip:mts, In case of shares held In electron ic form. In all 
correspondence with the ComponyfRegistrar :~nd Share Transfer Agent, members OJre 
requested to quote their folio numbers or OP 10 and Client 10 for physical or electronic 
holdings respectively. 

12. The documents referred to in the proposed resolutions are available for inspection at Its 
Registered Office of the Company during normal business hours on any working day except 
Saturdays, up to the date of meetmg. 

13. SE81 has mandated the submiSSIOn of Permanent Account Number ( PAN) hy every participant 
in ~>ec..urities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, reques ted to 
submit their PAN to their Deposi tory Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
account Members holding shares In physical form can s ubmit their PAN to the 
Company / Registrar. 

14. Members who hold shares in mulliple folios In identical names or joint holding in the same order 
of names are requested to send the share ce rtificates to the Registrar, for consolidation into a 
single folio. 

15. In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12. 2020. the 
Annual Report including audited financial statements for the financial year 2021·22 including 
notice of 30111 AGM is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members who have not 
registered their e-mai l address so far are requested to register rhelr e-mail address fo1 
receiving all communication Including Annual Report, Notices, C1rculars, etc. from the Company 
electronicnlly. 
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CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

2021-2022 

In case you have not registered your email id with depository or RTA you may registered your 
emailld In following manner. 

Physical Send a signed request to company at capOnjndialtd@yahoo.co.jo providing 
Holding Folio number, Name of the shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 

(Front and Back), PAN( Self attested scanned copy of PAN Card), AADHAR ( 
Self dtlc:slc:d sc.~nned copy of Aadhar Card) for re~~:isterine email address. 

Oemat Please contact your Depositary Participant (DP) and register your email 
Holding address as per the process advised by DP and send scan copy of client 

master to the company at caofinindlaltd@vahoo.co.in 

16. Addition<!! information, pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 In respect of the Director's seeking appointment/re-appointment is annexed 
to the notice. 

17. Voting through electronic means: In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) 
Rules, 2014 a~ amended up to date and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and the Circulars Issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May OS, 2020 and january 13. 2022 and Secretarial 
Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the 
Company Is pleased to provide faciUty of voting through electronic means I.e. remote e-voting in 
respect of the buslnes~(es) to be transacted at the 30th Annual General MeerlnR (AGM) as well as 
e-voting system on the dale of the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National s~curltles Depository Limlt~d (NSDL) for facilitati ng voting through 
electronic means, as tht! authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a membt!r using 
remote e-Voting system as well as venue voting on d1e date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

18. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off date/record date i.e., Friday, the 23nlSeptember, 2022. 
Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Benencial 
Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date shall be entitled to avail the 
facility of remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient of the 
Notice, who has no voting r1ghts as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this Notice as intimation only. 

19. Further, the company has engaged NIVIS CORPSERVE LLP for providing video conferencing 
system through cisco webex and e-votlng services through NSDL. In case any member required 
any :~ssist:mco In respect of e-voting or joining nf Mel'ting through VCfOAVM c:m cnnt:tct at 
following:-

· Mr. Shrinav Rastogi at info@njyjs.co.in 
- Nivis Corpserve LLP, 
-Contact No. 011-45201005. 
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E· VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING 
ARE ASUNDER: • 

The remote e-voting period begins on 27tbSeptember ZOZZ at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 29th 
SeptemberZOZ2 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for 
voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members I 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., 23"'Septcmber 2022, may cast 
their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be In proportion to their 
share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 2Jr<t 
September 2022. 

How do I vote e lectronically us lne NSPL e-Vot!ne system? 
The way to vote electrontca//y on NSDL e·VoLing system consists of"Two Steps~ which are mentioned 
below: 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e·Voting system 

A) Login method for e·Voting a Joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities In demat mode 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email ld in their demat accounts to 
access e·Voting facility. 

Lo~ln method for lndiv•duo shareholders holdinR securities in de mat mode is f!iven below: 
Type of Login Method 
shareholders 
Individual 1. If you arc already registered for NSDt IDeAS facUlty. please 
Shareholders holding visit the e·Servlccs website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
securities In demat typing the following URL: hnps://eseryices.nsdl.com/eithcr 
mode with NSOL.. on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 

of e·Services is launched, dick on the "Beneficia l Owner" 
icon under "Login" which is available under "IDeAS~ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 
and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to sec e-Voting services; Click on "Access to e-Voting" 
under c-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting 
page. Click on options available against company name or c· 
Voting service provider - NSDI.and you will be re-directed 
to NSDL e·Voting website for casting your vote during the 
remote e·Voting period or joining vi rtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

2. If the user Is not registered for IDeAS c·Services, option to 
regisler is available at bttps://cscrviccs.nsdLcom. Select 
"Register Online for IDcAS"Portal or click 
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Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

2021-2022 

athttps;//eseryices nsdi com/SecureWeb/!deasQircctRee jsp 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.eyotjog.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobi le. Once the home 
page of e-Vot ing system is launched, click on the icon "Login" 
which is available under 'Shareholder/ Member' section; A 
new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. 

your sixteen digitdemat account number held with NSDL). 
Password/ OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 
screen. Ancr successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. 
Click on options av:uioble agamst company name or e.Vorlng 

service provider • NSDL and you will be redirected to e­
Voting website of NSDLfor casting your vote during the 
remote c-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 

1. Existing users who have opted for Eas1 I Eas1est. they can 

login through their user id and password. Option will be made 
available to reach e·Voting page without any further 
authentication. The URL for users to login to Easl 1 Easiest 
arehttps· //web cdsl!ndia com/myeasl/home/loglnor 
www.cdsliodja.com and dick on New System Mycasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easfest the user will be also able 

to sec the E Voting Menu. The Menu w ill have links of e­
Voring service provider l e. NSDL Click on NSDL to cast 
your vote 

3. If the user is not registered for EasijEasiest, option to register 
Is available aL 

bt:tps://web.cdsliodja.com/myeasi/ReeJstration/EasjRee istra 

tiQn 

4 . Alt~:mallvely, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link In 
www cdsllndja com hom~: page. The !>Y!>lem will authenticate 
the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as 
recorded in the demat Account. After successful 
authenUcat lon. user will be provided links for the respective 

ESP i.e.NSDLwhere thee-Voting is in progress. 

0 



. . 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

CAPFIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

2021-2022 

You can also login using the logm credentials of your demat account 
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Votlng facility. Once login, you will be able to sec c-Voting option. 
Once you click on c-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein 
you can see e-Voting feature. Click on options available against 
company ncune or c-Votlng service provider·NSDL and you will be 
redirected to c-Voting website of NSDL for cas ting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining VIrtual meeting & voting during 
rhe meeting. 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Parget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holdmg securities in demat mode for any techmcallssues 
I d I . th h 0 I I NSDL d CDSL reate to ogm roug1 epos torv .e. an 

Lo2ln type tlelpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical i:>sue In login can cont;~ct 
securities in de mat mode with NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
NSDL eyotjng@nsdl.co.!nor call at tolll ree no.: 1800 lOZO 990 

and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholde rs holding Members facing any technical Issue In login can contact 
:;ecuritles in de mAt mode with CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
CDSL beh;Hlesk.!l:iQtiDU@CdSiinrJiii,!;Qtll or contact at 0:.!2-

23058738 or 022-23058542-43 

B) Login Method for shareholde rs other than Individual s hareholders holding securities 
i.n demat mode and s hareholders hold ins securities In physical mode. 

How to LQil-ID to NSPL e-Votlne website? 

1. Vi~it the e-Votlng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https· //www.eyor!ng,nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system Is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is 
available under 'Shareholder/ Member' section; 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 10, your Password/OTP and a 

Vt~rifir:~rinn Code ilS shown on the screen. 
Alternaefvely. if you ore re,qistcred for NSDL eservtces t.e. JUffAS, yvu Lull lv9-i" at 

htrps:{/esery!ces.nsdLcoml with your existing IDEAS logm. Once you lug -In co NSDI. 
eservices after usin.g your log-in credentials. click one-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 Le. Cast your vote electronically. 

4 . Your User ID details are iven below : 
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Manner of holding s hares I.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 
a) For Members who hold <;hares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
de mat account with CDS I... 

Your User 10 Is: 

CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

20U2022 

8 Character OP 10 followed by 8 Digit 
Client 10 
For example if your DP 10 Is IN3oo•u and 
Client 10 is 12•••*"• then your user ID is 
IN300 .... 12•••H •. 
16 Digit Beneficiary I 0 
For example If your Oeneficiary 10 is 
12 ............ u then your user 10 is 

c) For Members holding shares 
Physical Form. 

in EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example If folio number is 001*** and 
liVEN Is I 01456 then user ID is 
l0145600t••• 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you :tre already registered for c-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time. you will need to retrieve 
the 'initial password' which wa!i communicated to you; Once you retrieve your 
'initial password', you need to enter the 'mitial password' and the system will 
force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your 'Initial password'? 
(i) If your emaiiiD is registered in your demat account or with the company, 

your 'initial password' is communicated to you on your email ID; Trace lhe 
email sent to you fro m NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open 
the attachment i.e., a .pdf tile. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the 
.pdf file is your Bdigit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID 
for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in phys ical form . The .pdf 
file contains your 'User l D' and your 'Initial password'; 

(ii) If your emaillD is not regist ered. please follow steps mentioned below In 
process for tho§>e shareholders whose em ail Ids are not regl§>tered 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or h:we not received the "Initial password" or have 
forgotten your password: 
a) Click on "Eor~ot User Detat!s/Passwordr(lf you arc holdmg shares in your demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) opt• on available on www.cvoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evotim:,nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at eyotjn~@osdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also usc the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the o-Voting system of NSDL. 

7 . After entcrin.R your password, tick on Mree to "Terms and Conditions" by selectin~ on 
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the check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on "Login" button; 

CAPFIN INDIA L TO 
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9. After you click on the "Lol!ln" button, Home page of e -Votinl.! w111 open. 

How to cast your yote e!ectron!cal!y and join General Meetlne on NSDI. e-Yotlne system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting •s in active status. 

2. Select "EVEN" of company for which you wish to cast your vote dur ing the remote e·Votlng 
period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. for joining virtual meeting. you 
need to dick on "VC/ OA VM" Iink placed under "loin General Meeting"; 

3. Now you are ready for e-Votin11 as the Voting page opens. 

4 . Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit" and also 
"Confirm" when prompted; 

5. Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully" will be displayed; 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 
conflrmation p:~gc. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

Generd! Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (I.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required ro send 

scanned copy (PDF IJPG Format) of tho relevant Board Resolullon/ Authority letter etc. witn 
attested specimen s ignature of the duly author ized l'ignatory(les) who are authorized to 
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to bansal.deepanshu@gmall.com with a copy marked to 
evotlni @nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confident ial. Login to the e-votlng website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such :~n event, 
you will need to go through the "forgot User Details / Password?" or "Phvsical User Reset 
Password?" option available on www;evotlng;nsdl;com to reset the password; 

3 . In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 
ofwww.eyotmg nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 18001020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send 
a request toNivlsCorpserve LLP, Ms. Swapnil at info@nsdl co.inor may call at 011·45201005 
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Process for those shareholders whose email Ids a re not registered with the depositories for 
procuring user td and password and regis tration of e mall ids for c·votfng ror the resolut ions 
set out In thi.s notic:e: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please send signed request with Folio No .. Name 
of shareholder, scanned copy of any one share certificate (front and back), PAN (self­
attested scanned copy of PAN card), MOHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) 
by email to llpl@lnduslnvcst.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please update your email id with your d epository. If 
you are Individual shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to 
refor to the login method explained at step 1 (A) I.e. Login method for e-Votlng and joining 
virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.infor 
procuring user ld and password for e·voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEHI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e·Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies. Individual shareholders holding secur•hes in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their 
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORe-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THEEGM/ AGM ARE AS 
UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM Is s:~mc os the instructions 
mentioned above for remote e-votlng. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders. who will be present in the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e· 
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting 
system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e·Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. 
However, t hey will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility fore-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person memloned for 
Remote c-voting. 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEM BERS FOR ATn::NOI NC THE EGM/ ACM TIIROUGH 
VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/ AGM through VC/OAVM through 
the NSDL e-Voting system. Me mbers may access by following the steps mentioned above for 
Access to NSDL e·Voting system; After successful login. you can see link of "VC/011. VM link" 
placed under "Join Ge neral meeting'" menu against company name. You are requested to 
click on VC/OAVM link placed under jom General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will 
be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will bo displ:lyed. 
Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for e-Voting or 
have forgotten the User 10 and Password may retrieve the same by following tha remote e­
Voting instructions mentioned fn the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

13 



• I 

CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
ANNUAL REPORT 

202~2022 

3. F'urther Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connecting via Mobile Hots pot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their 
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable WI·FI or LAN Connection to 
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their VIews/have ques tions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name dcmat account number/folio numher. email id, 
mobile number at captlnlndialtd@yahoo.co.ln. The same will be replied by the oompany 
suitably. 
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting as 
required under Regulation 36(3) ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements ) 

Regulations, 2015 

Particula rs Sarita Mantry 

Date of Birth 13·01·1965 
Date of appointment/ re· 13·02·2017 
appointment 
Qualltlcatlons Graduate 
Expertise in specific Financia l 
functional a reas Matters 

lnter-se re lationship between . 
directors and key managerial 
personnel 
Directorships held In other . 
public companies (excluding 
foreign companies and 
Section 8 companies) 

Memberships/Chairmanships . 
of 
committees of other 
public companies 
Number of shares held In the 295888 
Company 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: September 7, 2022 

Rachita Mantry 
Kabra 
23·01·1991 
29·09-2015/ 
28-09-2020 
CA 
Wide 
experience in 
Banking and 
Financial 
Matters 
CFO of the 
Company 

. 

. 

25990 
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Ashok Mohta San Jay 
Kukreja 

18·10-1957 08-05-1969 
18·06-2019 Z5·08·20ZO 

Graduate Graduate 
Wide Wide 
experience In experience 
Industry Financial 
Matters Matters 

. 

. 1 

. . 

. . 

By Order of the Board 
For Capftn India Limited 

CIN:L74999DL1992PLC048032 

-sd-
Rachita Mantry Kabra 

Whole Time Director 
DIN: 03414391 

in 
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DIRECTOR REPORT 

To. 
Dear Shareholders 

CAPFIN INDIA LTD 
ANNUAL REPORT 

2021-2022 

Your directors have the pleasure in presenting their 30lhAnnual report of the company along with 
audited financial statements as required under the Ministry of Corporate Affairs' General Circular 
08/2014 No. 1/19/2013-CL-V dated April 4, 2014, the Financial Statements and other reports 
requi red to be attached to the Annual Report for FY 2021·22 are governed by the relevant 
provisions. schedules. rules of the Companies Act , 2013. 

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS 
The results of your Company'c: finan cial prudence and business excellence for the year ended 
31<~March 2022 are as follows: 

(Rs. In Lacs) 
Particulars fina ncial year Finandal year 

ended ended 
31.03.2022 3 1.03.2021 

Gross Income 17.87 15.00 
Profit/fLoss) before Oenreciatlon and Tax 5.04 4.81 
Less: DeorccJ:Ition .44 .45 
Profit/fLoss) before Tax 4.60 4.36 

Add/Less: Provision for tax including deferred 0.90 0.49 
Tax 
Profit/(Loss) after Tax 3.70 3.87 

2. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 
During the year under review, your company has incurred a Profit before depreciation and Income 
Tax of Rs. 4.601acs from Its operation. After provtding depreciation of Rs. 0.44lacs and provisions of 
Income Tax of Hs0.90Lacs the cumpauy's net profit amounts toRs. 3.70Lacc: as compared to profit 
of Rs. 3.871acs earned preVloul> year. Your Company continues to take effecrlve steps in broad 
basing its range of actlvJtJes. The perfunnance of the Comp:tny during the period under review has 
been satisfactory. 

3. DIVIDEND 
Keeping In view the future requi rements of funds by the Company for Its proposed growth and 
expansion, the Board expresses Its inability to recommend any d1vidend from the available profit. 

4 . SHARE CAPITAL 
The pald·up l!quity Share Cnpit:~l as on M:u ch 31. 2022 was Rs. 2.86,47,000. During the year under 
review the company has not Issued any shares or any convertible instruments. 

S. AMOUNT TRANSFERRED TO RESERVF.S 
During the year under review, the company has transferred loss of Rsl2.451acs to the reserves of 
tbe Company as per the norms of RBI Act, 1974. 
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In the current year, your directors are puttmg up efforts and it is hoped that the company will uu 
better In the current year. The outlook for the current year is also very bright and your directors arc 
hopeful of doing a good business during the current year. 

7. FIXED DEPOSITS 
The Company has not accepted any public deposits during FY 2021 ·22 within the meaning of 
Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under As per NBFC Guidelines 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the Board of Directors has passed the required resolution 
confirming that the Company has neither accepted any public deposits and nor does it intend to do 
so in the coming year 2022·2023. 

6 . PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
The pnrticulars of loans. guarantee~ and investments covered under the provisions of Section I 86 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 may be taken as nil. 

9 . MATERIAL CHANGES & COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF 
THE COMPANY 
There have been no material changes or any other commitments which may affect the financial 
position of the Company. 

10. LISTING OF SHARES 
The company declares that Its equity share is listed on BSE Ltd. The company has paid the annual 
listing fee for the year 2021 -2022 to the said exchange. 

11. SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM 
The request r-egarding physical s hare transfers and s hare certlncatcs should be addressed to 
Registrar and Transfer Agent. Such requests arc processed within stipulated time from the date of 
receipt provided documents meet the stipulated requirement of statutory provisions In all respect. 
The share certificates duly endorsed are returned immediately to the shareholder by RTA. The 
details of transfer and transmission are placed before the Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
from time to time and the Board for no[ing a nd confirmation. 

12. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

In Accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Mrs. Sarita Mantry (DIN: 01111382) 
retires by rotation and bemg eligible ofTers herself for rc:lppointment. 

12.1 BOARD EVALUATION 

Pursuant to the provisions of Companies Act, 201 3, the Board has carried out annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance. the dtrectors Individually as well the evaluation 
of the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Stakeholder committee. The manner 
In which the evaluation has been carried uut has been explained in Corporate Governance 
Report. 

12.2 INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING 

During the Financial Year 2021-2022 one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 
07.03.2022 to discuss the evaluatton of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the 
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Board of Directors as a whole, evaluation of the performance of the Chairman of the Company 
taking into account the views of the execuUve and non-executive Directors and evaluation of the 
quality, content and timeliness of the now of information between the management and Board 
which is necessary for the Board to perform Its duties. 

12.3 REMUNERATION POLICY 

Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination & Remuneration committee framed a policy 
for the selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration. The 
Remuneration Policy Is stated In lhc Corporate Governance Report. 

12.4 DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

All independent Directors have given declarations that they meet the cnteria of independence as 
laid down under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act. 2013 and Regulation 17 ofSEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations. 2015. 

12.5 BOARD MEETINGS 

During the year Eleven ( 11) Board mel!tings were held. details of which are given below: 

S. No. Date of Board meeting No. of Directors attended 
meetin2 

1. 14.04.2021 4 

2. 30.06.202 L 4 
3. 09.08.202 1 4 
4. 18.08.2020 4 
5. 26.08.2021 4 

6. 30.09.2021 4 

7. 14.11.2021 4 
8. 25.11.2021 4 

9. 01.12.2022 4 
10. 10.01.2022 4 
11. 01.02.2022 4 

13. COMMITTEE OF BOARD 

13.1 AUDIT COMMITTEE 
The company is having an audit committee compnsing of the following liirectors: 

Name Status Cate2orv 
Sanj:~y Kukreja Chairman lnl.lept!nc.leul Din:ctor 
Sarita Man try Member Non-Executive Director 
Ashok Mohta Member Independent Director 

13.2 NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITIEE 

The company is having a Nomination and Remuneration committee comprising of the following 
directors: 
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Sanjay Kukreia Chairman 
Sarita Mantrv Member 
Ashok Mohta Member 

13.3 STAKEHOLDER RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
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Category 
Independent Director 

Non-Executive Director 
Independent Director 

The company Is having a Stakeholder Relat ionship committee comprising of the following 
directors: 

Name Sbtus Category 
Saniav Kukrela Chairman lndep_endent Director 
Sarita Mantry Member Non-Executive Director 
Ashok Mohta Member Independent Director 

14. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
In order to ensure that the actlvities of the Company and its employees are conducted in a fair and 
transparent manner by adoption of highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity, and 
ethical behavior the company has adopted a vigil mechantsm policy. This policy is explained in 
corporate govemance report and posted on the wPhsite of company. 

l SC/1 DIRECTORS' R£SPONSIBILITV STATEMENT 
To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the Information and explanations 
obtained by them, your Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the 
Companies A~;t, 2013: 

a) that In the preparation of the annual nnanclal statements for the ye3r ended March 3 1, 2022. 
the applicable accounting standards h3ve been followed along with proper explanation relating 
to material departures, if any; 

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in Notes to the Financial Statements have been 
selected and applied consistently and judgments and estimates have been made that are 
reasonable and pnadent so as to give a true and fair view of the stale of affairs of the Company as 
at March 31, 2022 and of the profit/loss of the Company for the yenr ended on that date. 

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records In ;~ccord ;mce with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other Irregularities; 

d) That the annual financial :.tatements have been preptored on" colng concern has is. 

e) That proper Internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were 
adequate and were operating effectively. 

f) That systems to ensure wuaJ.IIidncc with tho provl,iono; nf all applicable laws were in place and 
were adequate and operating effectively. 
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16. COMPANY POLICY ON DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION 
The company has formulated a remuneration policy which provides the manner of selection of 
Board of Directors, KMP and their remuneration. In case of appointment of Independent directors. 
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall satisfy itself with regard to independent nature 
of Its directors viz-a-viz the company so as to enable the Board to discharge its performance and 
duUes effectively. 

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
There were no contracts or arrangements entered Into by the company in accordance with 
provisions of section 100 of the Companies Act, 2013. All material related party transactions that 
were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and were In the ordinary 
course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the 
Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or orher designated persons which 
may have a potential connlct with the interest of the Company at large. 

18. IMPACT OF COVJD-19 ON BUSINESS 
The spread ofCOVID·l9 has severely impacted businesses around the globe. In many countries 
including India, there has been severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdown, 
disruption in transportation, quarantines, social distancing and many other norms. The COVID-19 
pandemic Is rapidly spreading throughout the world. Company office was in lockdown since April 
2021 till September. 2021 . As per directives of MHA, wherein some relaxations were announced, the 
Company made operational its office with 33% capacity taking all the precautions and following all 
the standard norms. The company has evaluated 1ts liquidity position ami rucoverability and 
carrying value of Its assets and has conducted no matenal adjustment. However, in future some 
adjustment will be required w be made: due to COVID-19 pandemic. 

19. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
The Management Discussion and Analys is Report of your company for the financial year ended on 
31" March, 2022 are as under: 

(a) Industry Structure and Development 
Your Company is engaged in the financial activities and management expects that there is 
huge scope of development and growth in spite or competitive market conditions. 

(b) Opportunities an d Threats 
The Company envisages huge g rowth In the l1nanc1al activities s ector as indicated in the 
current fin;~nci::~l year. But Increased cost of purchases. competJUve market conditions and 
low margins are the major threats in the f1nanctal comp;~nles. 

(c) Segment · Wise a nd Product· Wise r erformance 
The Company operates In single segment. Therefore, no Segment- Wise and Product - Wise 
performance is done by the Company. 

(d) Outlook 
The Company does not foresee a ny major threat to the growth prospective. Since the 
company Is presently engaged In the financial activities, lhere Is huge scope of growth in the 
industry. 
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The Company has constltllted a committee of Directors to identify, monitor and minimize 
the r isk and to identify the business opportunities. The Committee Is also entrusted the job 
of defining the framework for identification. assessment, monitoring, and reporting of the 
r isk and review of risk trends and Its potendallmpacl 

(0 Internal Control Systems and It Adequacy 
The Company has adequate system of Internal control to safeguard and protect from loss, 
unauthorized use or disposition of llS assets. All the transactions ::. re properly authorized, 
recorded and reported to the Management. The Company is following all the applicable 
Accounting Standards for properly maintaining the books of accounts and reporting 
fln:mclal statement'\. The Internal auditor of the company checks a nd verifies the internal 
control and monitors them in accordance with policy adopted by the company. 

(g) Discussion on Financial Performa nce with respect to OperaUonal Performance 
The financial performance during the current financial year in terms of sales has been on the 
upward side. Tht: Company has earned profi t of3.701acs dunng the y~:ar under review. 

(h) Material Development In Human Resources I Industr ial Rela tions 
The company recognized the stgnificance of human values and ensures that proper 
encouragemenl is given to the employees of the Company to motivate them. Employee's 
relations continued to be cordial throughout the year in the company. 

(I) Cautionary Statement 
The Statements in the "Man;~gement Discussion and Analysis Report" describe the 
Company's objectives, esttmates and expectations, which may be a forward looking 
statement within the meaning of applicable laws, rules and regula tions. The actual rcsulls 
may differ from those expressed or implied, depending upon the economic conditions a nd 
policies of the Government 

ZO. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
There arc no significant material orders passed by the Regulators I Courts which would lmpacl lhc 
going concern status of the Company and Its future operations. 

21. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
The uct\lfls fo rming p.trt nf the extract of the Annual Rentrn In form MGT 9 ts annexed herewith as 
"Annl'XIII'O B"; 

22. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECIINOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FORt:JGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
The information on conservation of e nergy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings 
and outgo stipulated Ultuer Section 134(3)(m) of the Comp;~nles Act. 2013 read wi th Rule, 8 of The 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, are not applic3ble. 
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The Information required pursuant to Sect ion 197 read with Rule, S of The Companies 
(Appoinrment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 In respect of employees or 
the Company is as follows: 

The company has one Executive Director, so no sitting fees has heen paid to any director during the 
year. The particulars of the employee:~ who arc covered by the provisions contained in Rule 5(2) 
and rule 5(3) or Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnt:l) Rules, 2014 
:.re requiring particulars or the employees to be d isclosed in the report of Board of Directors are not 
applicable to the company as none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration in excess of 
1.20 crore per year during the financial year 2021-22. 

Z4. AUDITORS 

24.1 STATUTORY AUDITORS 
M/s Rag & Associates. Chartered Accountants (ICAI Reg No: 541696, FRN ·008653C), were 
appointed as statutory auditors of the Company up to the conclusion of 31'" Annual general meeting 
subject to ratification of their appotntment at every annual general meeting to be held after 291" 

Annual general meeting. They are eligible tO be appointed as the s tatutory auditors: therefore a 
resolution for the ratificat ion of the1r appointment is recommended for the approval of the 
shareholders. 

The observations m:~de in the auditor's report r~ad together with relevant notes thereon are self­
explanotory and hence do not call for any further documents from the Directors under section 
134(3)(1) of the Companie~ Act, 2013. 

24.2 SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules. 2014, the Company has 
appointed CS Deepanshi Jain (COP No. 14826,Membership no: 40127) Company Secretaries to 

undertake the secretarial audit of the company. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as 
'Annexure-A'; 

24.3 INTERNAL AUDITORS 

The company has appointed Ncha Mantry as Internal auditor of the company pursu::mt section 
138of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

25. SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
The Company does not have any subsidiary, joint venture, or associate company 

26. Dh"TAJL OF FAMILIARJZATION PROGRAMME OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
During the year under review one farnlllariU~rlon programme was conducted for the independent 
Directors of the Company. 
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21. NUMUER OF COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND DISPOSED OFF DURING THE YEAR AS PER T HE 
SEXUAL HARRASEMENT OF WORKMEN AT THE WORKPLACE ACT. 2013 - PROCTION, 
PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL 
During the year under review the company has not received any complaint as per the sexual 
Harassments of Workmen at the Work Place Act, 2013. 

28. DETAI L OF SHARES IN UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 
The Company has nil shares in Unclaimed Suspense Account 

29. STATEMENT INDIACTING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RJSK MANAGEMENT 
POLICY OF THE COMPANY 
The provisions of Regulation 21 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015 are not applicable to the company. At present the Company has not Identified any 
clement of risk In the Company. 

3D. INDICATING TilE MANNER IN WHICII FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION HAS BEENMADE BY 
THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE AND THAT OF ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL 
DI RECTORS INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee constituted in compliance with section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant ru les framed there under and llcgulation 19 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulat ions. 2015 has laid down a framework 
for the evaluation of the performance of the Directors including Independent Directors and the 
Committees of the Board. 

31. DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE DIRECTORS 
The Directors are not related to each other. 

32. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
A Report on Corporate Governance along with a Cert1ficate from the PCS of the Company 
regarding compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing 
agreement and Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation~ and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015 with stock exchanges Is annexed as· Anncxure-C"; 

33. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
The directors state that the applicable secretarial standards. i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 relating to MMeetings 
of Board or Dln:~.oto• s and Ccnoral Meeting~·. res pectively have been duly followed by the Company; 

34. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
The Company has formulated a CSR Polley pursuant tu the provis ions of the section 135 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed there under. At present the provisions arc not 
applicable to the company. As and when these p rovisions become applicable. necessary steps will be 
taken to comply with the same. 
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The company has been very well supported from all quarters and therefore your directors wish to 
place on record their sincere appreciation for the support and co-operation received from 
Employees, Dealers, Suppliers, Central and State Governments, Bankers and others associated with 
the Company. 

Your Directors wish to thank the banks, shareholders and business associates for their continued 
support and cooperation. We look forward to receiving the continued patronage from all quarters to 
become a better and stronger company. 

Place: Delhi 
Dated: 30.05.2022 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For Capfin India Limited 

-sd- -sd-
Rachita Mantry Kabra Sarita Mantry 

Whole Time Director Director 

DIN: 03414391 DIN:01111382 
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"Annexure- A" to the Board Report 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

To, 
The Members, 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31st, 2022 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Ac~ 2013 and rule 

No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 
Rules, 2014] 

Capfin India Limited 
lC/13, Basement 
Rajnigandha Building 
New Rohtak Road 
Delhi West 
Delhi-110005 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate practices by Mjs. Capfin India Limited (hereinafter called "the 
Company"). The secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis 
for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification ofthe Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, I hereby 
report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on March 31st, 2022 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms, and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Mjs. Capfin India Limited for the financial year ended on March 31st, 2022 
according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under. 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Byelaws framed there under. 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to 
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial 
Borrowings. (Not applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2020-2022) 

(v) Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 
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(vi) Industrial Dispute Act,1947 

(vii) Minimum Wages Act, 1948 

(viii) Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881 

(ix) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 
oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2018.(Not applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2021-22) 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 
2014.(Not applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2021-2022) 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 
Regulations, 2008. (Not applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2021-2022) 

t) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 
2009.(Not applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2021-2022) 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018. (Not 
applicable to the company during the Financial Year 2021-2022) 

I have also examined compliance with respect to the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General 
Meeting (SS-2) issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 

(b) The Listing Agreement entered by the Company with the BSE Ltd. 

(c) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

During the period under review, the company has complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above. 
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I further report that: 

The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, like Direct and Indirect Tax Laws, has 
not been reviewed in Secretarial Audit since the same have been subject to review by Statutory 
Financial Auditor and other designated professionals. 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of 
the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in 
compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with 
the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

(a) Public/ Rights/ Preferential Issue of Shares/Debentures/ Sweat Equity 

(b) Redemption/ Buy-back of Securities 

(c) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuant to section180 of the Companies Act, 
2013 

(d) Merger I Amalgamation/ Reconstruction etc. 

(e) Foreign Technical Collaborations 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29th August, 2022 
UDIN:F010651D000868200 
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Sd/­
Deepanshi Jain 

Company Secretary 
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DEEPANSHI JAIN & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
OFF: C-7/75, First Floor, Sector-7, Rohini, Delhi-110085 
MOB: +91-8800984002 EMAIL ID: csdeepanshljaln@)gmall.com 

Note: This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as an "Annexure­
A" and forms an integral part of this report~ 

"Annexure-A" 
To, 
The Members, 
Capfin India Limited 
1C/13, Rajnigandha Building 
New Rohtak Road 
Delhi West 
Delhi-110005 

I report that: 

(a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

(b) I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

(c) I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the 
Company. 

(d) I have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations, wherever required. 

(e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. My examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on a random test basis. 

(t) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company. 

(g) I have conducted online verification & examination of records, as facilitated by the Company, 
due to Covid-19 and subsequent lock:down situation for the purpose of issuing this Report. 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 29th August, ZOZZ 
UDIN:F010651D000868ZO 

28 

For Deepanshi Jain & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

Sd/­
Deepanshi Jain 

Company Secretary 
ACS No- 41710 
CPNo-14826 
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-Annexure - B" to the Board Report 

FORM NO. MGT 9 
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022 

Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Co mpanies Act, 2013 and rule 1 2 (1) of the Company 
(Ma nagement & Administration) Rules, 201 4 . 

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS: 

1. CIN L74999DL1992PLC048032 

2. Registration Date 16.03.1992 

3. Name of the Capfin India Limited 
Company 

4. Category /Sub- Company limited by shares 
category of the Indian Non-government company 
Company_ 

5. Address of the lC/13, Basement, Rajnigandha Building. New Rohtak Road New 
Registered office & Delhi - 110005 
contact details 

6. Whether listed Yes 
company 
Name, Address & Mjs. INDUS PORTFOLIO PRIVATE LTD 
contact details of the G-65 BALl NAGAR 
Registrar & Transfer NEW DELHI-110015 
Agent, If any. Te1No: 47671212/1213/1232 

Email: ipp!@lnduslnvest com 
Website: www.lndusinvest.<:om 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 

10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated) 

~ Name and Description or ma 111 NIC Code of tho % Tn total turnover of the 
products I services Product/service company 

1 Granting of Loan Services for 99711359 71.18% 
business purpose 

Ill. PARTICULARS Of" HOLDING, SUIJSIDIARY AND ASSOCLATE COMPANIES 
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S.No. Name and CIN/CLN 
Address of the 
Company 

1 

2. 

Holding/ %Of Shares 
Subsidiary I held 
Associate 

NONE 

CAP FIN INDIA L TO 
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Applicable 
section 

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATIERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 
i) Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the No. of Shares held at the end of the year(As %Cha 
Shareholders yearlAs on 01 April- 2021] on 31-March-2022] nge 

Demal Physical Total % Of Demat Physical Total %Of during 

Total Total the 

Share Shares year 

s 

A. Promoters 

(1) Indian 

a) Individual/ 155710 0 155710 5.44 295888 0 295888 10.33 4.89 

HUF 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 
b) Central Govt 

c) State Covt(s) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

d) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

e) Banks 1 Fl 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

f) Any other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

SubTotal 155710 0 155710 5.44 295888 0 295888 10.33 4.89 

(A)(l):-

(2) Foreign Nil. 

a) NRls- 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Individuals 

b) Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

Individuals 

c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NIL 

d) Banks 1 Fl 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Nil. 
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e) Any Other .... 0 0 

Sub-total (A) 0 0 

(2):· 

Total 155710 0 
shar eholding 
of Promoter 
(A)= 

(A)(l)+(A)(2) 
B. Public 

Sharehol dl ng 

L Institutions 
0 0 

a) Mutual 0 0 

Funds 

b) Banks/ PI 
0 0 

c) Central Govt 
0 0 

d) State Covt(s) 
0 0 

e) Venture 0 0 

Capital 

Fund!i 

I) Insurance 0 0 

Companies 

0 0 
g) Fils 

h) Foreign 0 0 

Venture Capital 

Funds 

I) Others 0 0 

(specify) 

Sub-total 0 0 

(8)(1):· 

2. Non· 
Institutions 

a) Bodies Coro. 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

155710 5.44 295888 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 

0 0 0 0 
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0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 

295888 10.33 4.89 

0 0 NIL 

0 0 Nil. 

0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 

0 u NIL 

0 0 NIL 

·-0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 

0 0 NIL 



390920 0 390820 

l) Indian 
0 0 0 

ii) Overseas 

b) Individuals 
i) Individual 771 5 90900 168051 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital upto Rs. 
11akh 
II) Individual 2096941 35300 213ZZ41 
shareholders 
holding 
nominal share 
capital in 
excess of Rs 1 
lakh 
c) Others 
(specify) 
d) Hindu 0 0 0 
Undivided 
Pamilv 
Non-Resident 
Indians 
Clearing 17878 0 17678 
Members/ 
Custodian 

0 0 0 
Trusts 
foreign Oodles 0 0 0 
- DR 
Sub-total 2582790 126200 2708990 
(8)(2):-
Total Public 2582790 126200 2708990 
Shareholdlng 
(B)=(B)(l)+ 
(8lf2) 
C. Share s held 0 0 0 
by Custodian 
rorCDRs& 
ADRs 
CrandTotal Z738500 126200 0 
fA+B+Cl 

13.64 390882 0 

0 0 0 

5.87 51374 90600 

7•M2 2035956 0 

0 0 0 

0.62 0 0 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

94.56 2478Zl 2 90600 

94.56 2478212 90600 

0 0 0 

2864 2774100 90600 
700 
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390882 13.64 Nil 

0 0 0 

141974 4.95 (0.92) 

2035956 71.07 (3.35) 

0 0 0 

0 

0 0 (0.62) 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 

2568812 89.67 (4.89) 

2568812 89 67 (4.89) 

0 0 0 

0 28647 0 
00 



SN 

1 

il) Shareho lding of Promoter: • 
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Shareholder's Shareholding at the beginning of Shareholding at the end of the year %Change in 
Namo the year sharcholding 

No. of %Of %Of Shares No. of %Of total o/oOf Shares during the 

Shares total Pledged I Shares Shares of the Pledged I year 

Shares encumbered company encumbered 
of the to total to total shares 

company shares 

Sarita Oevl 155710 5.11 Nil 295888 10.33 0 4.89 

TOTAL 155710 5.44 Nil 295888 10.33 0 4.89 

IU)Change in Promote rs' Share holding (please speclfy, lfthere is no change) 

SN Particulars Shareholdlng at the Cumulative Shareholdmg 
beginnin~ of the year durin!! the year 
No. of % Of total No. of %Of total 
shares shares of the shares shares of the 

comoany company 
At the beginning of the year 155710 5.44 155710 5.44 

Add: Addition In Shares 140178 4.89 295BBB 10.33 

At the end of the year 295888 10.33 295888 10.33 

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders: (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holde rs of 
GDR.s a nd ADRs): 

SN For Each ofthe Top 10 Shareholding at the Sharcholding at the 
Shareholders beginning end 

of the vear of the year 
No. of % ofrotal No. of %of total 
shares shares of shares shares ol 

the the 
company company 

1. Tarun Taneja 0 0 130571 4.04 

1. Focus Stock Brokers Ltd 226200 7.90 226200 7.90 

2. jagjeet Kaur Malik 111600 3.90 111600 3.90 

3. Mantrl Leasing & Financial Service Pvt. 93600 3.27 93600 3.27 
Ltd 

4. Ramcsh Chandra l'achisia 82600 2.88 82600 2.88 
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5. Ramesh Kumar 0 0 
6. Mantri Capital Services Ltd 65000 2.27 
7. Meghana Kabra 62700 2.18 
8. Gopal Krishna Maheshwari 58773 2.05 
9. Siddharth Kabra 58000 2.02 
10. A nil Kumar Toshniwal 53067 1.85 

v)Sba h ld' re o ango fDI . I p ersonnel: rectors and Key Manaeen a 
SN Shareholding of each Directors Shareholding at the 

and each Key Managerial beginning 
Personne l of the year 

No. of % Of total 
shares shares of 

the 
company 

1. Rachita Man try Kabra 25990 0.90 
2. SaritaMantry 155710 5.44 

CAPFIN INDIA L TO 
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69374 2.42 -
65000 2.27 
62700 2.18 
78773 2.75 
58000 2.02 
53067 1.85 

Cumulative 
Shareholdlng during 
the 
Yea r 
No. of %Of total 
shares shares of 

the 
comoanv 

25990 0.90 
295888 10.33 

V) INDEBTEDNESS ·Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not 
due for payment. 

-Secured Loans Unsecured Total 
excluding 

Loans 
Deposits 

Indebtedness 
deoosits 

Indebtedness at the beginning of 
the financial year 
I) Principal Amount 30.00.000 ....... ....... ... ........... 

iil Interest due but not paid 11 40.000 ........ ...... .... ........... 

iii) Interest accrued but not due .... ...... -··· ··-- ..... ...... 

Total (1+11+111) .......... .......... ---- .. ... .... 

Change In Indebtedness during the ......... 
... ..... ....... .. ... ....... 

financial year 

• Addition .... ·-··· ...... ... ....... 

• Reduction ~ ~ ~- ........ ...... .... ··--
NetCbanJ[e ......... ........... ---·- ......... 

Indebtedness at the end ofthe - ·--
financia l year ~· -· 

...... ...... ----
I) Principal Amount 30,00,000 ......... ......... ----
II) In terest due but not patd 11,40,000 -·-· ......... ... ...... 
iiD~ Interest accrued but not due ........ ...... ... ....... ....... . 

Total {l+ll+llll 41,40,000 ........ ---- ....... .. 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KF.Y MANAGERJAL PERSONNEL· 

Total Amount 
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1 Gross salary 
(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained In section 17(1) of the 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) 
Income-tax Act, 1961 
(c) Profits in lieu of sal;:u-y under 
s ection 17(3}1ncome- tax Act 1961 

2 Stock Option 
3 Sweat Equity 
4 Commission 

·as% of profit 
• others, spedfyrll 

5 Others, please spectfY 
Total (A) 
Ceiline as per the Act 

B. Remuneration to other d irectors 

SN. Particulars of Remuneration 

1 Independent Directors 
fee for attending board 
committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 
Total (1) 

2 Other Non-Executive Directors 
Pee for attending board 
committee meetings 
Commission 
Others, please specify 
Total (2) 
Total (81=[1+21 
Total Managerial 
Remuneration 
Over;~ll Ceiling as per the Act 

Rachita ........ ........ 
Man try 

Kabra 
WTD 
240000 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 
240000 . . 

. . . 

Name of Directors 

-··-- ........ ........ 
. . . 
. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . . 

. . 

. . . 
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240000 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
240000 

. 

Total Amount 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 
·-. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/ MANAGER/ WTO 
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SN Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel 

CEO cs CFO Total 
Priyanka Rachita 
Chaudhary Man try 

Kabra 
1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 
section 17l_l)oflhe Income-tax Act. 1961 - 120000 120000 240000 
(b) Value of perquisi tes ufs 17(2) Income-
tax Act 1961 - - - -
(c) Profits m lieu of :.alary under section 
l'l(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - - -

2 Stock Ootion - - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
4 Commission - - - -

- as %of profit - - - -
others, specifyl'll - - - -

5 Others, please specify - - -
Total - 120000 120000 240000 

VII. PENAL TIES PUNISHMENT I COMPOUNDING OF OfFENCES: 
Type Section o( the Br ief Details of Authority Appeal made, 

Compa nies Description Penalty I lRD/NCLT/ If any (give 
Act Punis hment/ COURTJ Details) 

Compounding 
fees Imposed 

A. COMPANY 

Penlllty 

Punishment NONE 

Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

Punishment NO NE 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty 

Punishment NONE 

Compounding 
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I. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance 
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"Annexure -C" to the Roat·d R(•port 

The Board of Directors believe~ lhat the Code prescribes only a mtmmum framework for 
governance of a business In corporate fra mework; The Board's philosophy is to develop this d esired 
minimum framework and institutionalize the spirit it entails. This wtll lay the foundation for furth er 
development of superior governance practices, which are vital for growing a s uccessful business, 
creating sustainable long·tcrm shareholder value, and bal;mcing it with the interests of other 
stakeholders in the Company. The Board recognizes that transparency; disclosure, financial controls 
and accountability are the pillars of any good system of corporate governance. 

A report on the implementat.ion of the code of Corporate Governance as per Regulation 17 to 27 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) ReKuiations, 2015 of the Listing 
Agreement is given below: 

II. Board of Directors 

A. BOARP'S COMPOSITION ANP CATEGORY 

At present, the Board comprises of fou r directors. Out of four, out of which two d irectors arc 
Independent dire<:tors and one (1) whole lime director and one ( I ) promoter and non-executive 
director. The Company has a Non-Executive Chairman, and the two Independent Directors comprise 
at least one third of the total strength of the Board. All the Independent Directors have confirmed 
that they meet the 'independence' criteria as mentioned under the Regulation 17 of SEBI (Ltsting 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Lis ting Agreement and Section 
149 of the Act 

None of the Directors on the Company's Board Is a member of more than ten Committees and 
Chairman of more lhan five Committees [Committees being. Audit Committee and Stakeholder 
Relationship Committee (Erstwhile Investors' Grievance Committee), Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee] across all the Indian public limited companies In which he/she Is a 
director. All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions held by 
them In other cuutfJdllies and do not hold the ofnce nf Director in more tha n twenty companies, 
including ten public companies. 

None of the directors has any pecuniary relationship with the company except sitting fc<'l: for 
attending Board/Committee meetings from the company. 

None of the prest:nt directors arc "Rel:~tive· of each other as defined In Section 2 {77) of Companies 
Act, 2013 and Rule 4 of the companies (Specification of definitions d elails) Rule 2014. 

The composition and overall attendance of the Board of Directors d uring the last finan cial year is 
stated in table below: 
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Name Designatio Date o f No. of Last No. of o ther directorship a nd co m mittee 
n appointment Boa rd AGM membership and cha irmanship"'' 

j re· Mee tings of atte 
a ppointment the nde 

Compa ny$ d 

He I Atten Atte Other Other Committe Committe 
d ded nde Board Board e Mcmbcr e 
du durin d Dlrecto Chair Sh ip Chairman 
rln gthe the rshlp man 
g year last s hip 
the ACM 
ye 
ar 

Ms. Rachita Whole Time 29 /09/2015/ 11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil 
Mantry Kabra Director 28·09·2020 
Ms. Sarita Non· 03/02/2018 

11 11 
Yes 1 Nil Nil Nil 

Man try Executive& 
Promoter 

Mr.Ashok Independent 19/06/2019 
11 11 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil 

Mehta Director 
Mr. Sanjay Non· 25/08/2020 11 11 Yes 1 1 1 1 
Kukreja Executive& 

Independent 

S Private Limited Companies, Foreign Compames. Altemate Directorships and are excluded for the above 
purpose 
**The Committee considered for the above purpose are those prescribed In the Listing Agreement i.e. 

Audit Committee 3nd Shareholders' f Investors' Grlevanct: Committee, Nomination and Remuneration 
committee. 

B. CORE SKILL/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES 
As stipulated under Schedule V of the SEBI Listing Regulations, core skillsjexpertlsefcompelendes. 
as required in the context of the business and sector for it to funct1on effectively and those available 

I h h B d h b d n db h d fD w t t e oar ave een I enti 1c w t e Boar 0 I rectors. 
S.No. Name of the Designation Core Skills/Expertise/Competencies of directors 

director 
1 Sarita Mantry Director X Leadership Qualities 

X Diversity 
X Board Service and Governance 

2 Rachita Mantry Wholl! Time X Leadership qualities 
Kabra Director X Industry knowledge and experience 

X Financial expertise 
X Risk Managemerll 
X Understanding of relevant laws, rules, 

reJ;tulation and policy 
3 Sanjay Kukreja Independent X Leadership quali ties 

Director X Human Resources & Industrial Relations 
X Corporate Govt:r nance & Ethics and Regulatory 

sectors 
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4 Ashok Mohta Independent X 

Director X 

X 

X 

Leadership qualities 
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Management and Strategy 
Financial Matters 
Diversity 

C. BOARD MEETINGS ANQ ATIENQANCE 

Your Company's Board met 10 times during the period and details of the meetings are highlighted 
below the Dates of Board Meetings arc fLXcd in advance and agenda papers are Ci rculated to 
Directors generally one week before the meeting. All material information is incorporated in the 
agenda papers for facilitating meaningful and focused discussion at the meeting. 

During the year the 2021 -2022, the Board met Eleven (11) times as per the detail 

S. No. Date of Board meeting 

1. 14.04.2021 
2. 30.06.2021 
3. 09.08.2021 
4. 18 08.2021 
5. 26.08.202 1 
6. 30.09.2021 
7. 14.11.2021 
8. 25.11.2021 
9. 01.12.2021 
10. 10.01.2022 
11. 01.02.2022 

I. Sbareboldln& of Non-Executive Directors 

Name of Director Number of Shares 
Mrs. Sarita Mantrv 295888 
Mr. Ashok Mohta NIL 
Mr. San jay Kukreja NIL 

11. Non-Executive Q!rgctors' Compensation 

No foes or compens:ltlon Is p:~id tn :~ ny non - executive director during the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2022. 

iii. Information sypplied to Board 

The Board of 01rectors has complete access to any Information w ithin the Company. At tht: 
Board meetings, the Directors are provided with all relevant information matters 
including the matters specified In Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

iv. Details of Remuneration paid to the Directors as per Regulation 19(4) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regu lations Z015 during the 
financial year 2021-2022. 
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Name of the Director Cate2orv Amoun t (In Rs.) 
Rachita Man try Kabra WfDand CFO 360000/-
SaritaMantry Non-Executive Otrector and Nil 

Promoter 
Sanjay Kukreia Non-Executive and Independent Nil 
Ashok Mohta Non-Executive and Independent Nil 

m. COMMITIEES OF THE BOARD 

AUDIT COMM!TIEE; 

The constituted Audit Committee of Directors which has the powers similar to those stated In the 
listing Agreement and the term of reference and role of the Audit Committee are as per the 
guidelines set out in the Listing Agreement entt!reJ inLo with the Stock Exchanges read with Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and includes such other functions as may be assigned to It by board 
from time to time. The minutes of meeting of Audit committees are placed be tore the Board. 

I) Composition of Audit Committee 

As per listing agreement at least two-third of Lhe members of Audit Committee shall be Independent 
Directors. The Audit Committee of the Ooard of your Company comprises of three members for the 
financial year end 31 .03.2022. All members of audit committee are financially literate. Mr. Sanjay 
Kukreja has :m accounting and related financial management expertise. The Statutory audi tors of 
the company also attend the meetings. 

Name of Members Designa tion Status/ Position 

Mr. San Jay Kukreja Chairman Non-Executive and 
lndeoendent and Chairman 

Ms. SaritaMantry Member Non-Executive ;~nd 
Promoter 

Mr. Ashok Mohta Member Non-Executive and 
Independent 

II) No. of meeting and a ttendance at meetings 

During the year the Audit Committee meeting held as per the detatl g1ven below: 

SNo. Date of Meeting Atte ndance 

1 22"" May, 2021 Mr. Sanjay Kukrcja, Mrs. Sarita Mantry. Mr Ashok 
Mohta 

2 28st July 2021 Mr. Sanjay Kukreja, Mrs. Sarita Manrry, Mr Ashok 
Mohta 

3 14th August, 2021 Mr. Sanjay Kukreja. Mrs. Sarita Mantry, Mr Ashok 
Mohta 

4 02nd November 2021 Mr. San jay Kukrcja. Mrs. Sarita Mantry, Mr Ashok 
Mohta 

40 

- .. 



CAPFIN INDIA L TO 

23n1 )anuary,2022 Mr. San jay Kukreja, Mrs. Sarita Man try, Mr Ashok 
Mohta 

iii) Powers a nd role of audit committee and review of lnfonnat1on by It: 
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The audit committee was reconstituted In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and Regulation 18 or SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 of listing agreement. The major tasks performed by the audit committee may 
be grouped under the following heads: 

Statutory audit, internal audit, reporting and other aspects 

I. The Audit Committee of the Company is entrusted with the responsibility to supervise the 
Company's internal controls and financial reporting process. The Committee acts as a link 
between the Management, Auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company and has full 
access to the financial Information. 

II. Oversight of the company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial 
information tu ensure that the financial statement is correct. sufficient and credible and 
ensuring timely submission to statutory authorities. 

!II. To review the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 

iv. To review with the management, the quanerly financial statements and annual financial 
statements and auditor's report thereon before submission to the board for approval. 

v . To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the company's system and internal control; 

vi. Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

vii. To review the fun ctioning of the Whistle Olower mechanism. 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITIEE 

A Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors consisting of Mr. Sanjay Kukreja and 
Mr. Ashok Mohta, non-executive and Independent Directors and Mrs. Sarita Manrry, as Promoter 
and Non-Executive Director, as Its members. Mr. Sanjay Kukreja acts chairman of the meeting. 

The terms of reference of the committee are as follows: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence 
of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees: 

2. formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Bonrd; 

3. Devising a policy on Board diversity; 
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4. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their 
appointment and removal. 

The remuneration policy as adopted by the company envisages payment of remuneration according 
to qualification, experience, and performance at different levels of the organization. The employees 
rendering clerical. administrative and professional services are suitably remunerated according to 
the industry norms. Although remuneration Is paid to only Rachlta Manny Kabra as Whole Time 
Director. 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

In compliance with the Listing Agreement requirements and provisions of the Companies Act. 2013. 
the Company has a Stakeholders' Relationship Committee (formerly known as Shareholders 
Grievance Committee). The Committee comprises three members includmg two Independent 
Directors. A Committee has been constituted by the Board of Directors consists of Mr. Sanjay 
Kukreja, Mrs. Sarita Mantry and Mrs. Ashok Mohta non-executive Directors as its members. Mr. 
Sanjay Kukre)a acts chairman of the meenng. 

The Committee performs following functions: 
(i) Transfer / Transmission of shares. 
(ii) Issue of Duplicate Share Certificates. 
(iii) Review of Share dematerialization and rematerlallzatlon. 
(lv) Monitoring the expeditious Redressal of Investor Grievances. 
(v) Monitoring the performance of company's Registrar & Transfer Agent; 
(vi) All other matters related to the shares. 

During the year under review, the Company has not received any cum plaints. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS' MEETING 

During the year under review, the Independent Directors met on 7•hMarch 2022. inter alia 10 
discuss: 

i. Review the performance of non-Independent directors and the Board as a whole. 
ii. Review the performance of the Chairperson of the company. taking into account the views of 

executive directors and non-executive directors. 
Ill. Assess the quality, quantity, and timeliness of now of information between the company 

managemem and the Board that Is necessary fo r the Board to perform their duties effectively 
and reasonably. 

RE· APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS 

The company has received declarations from the independent directors of the company confirming 
that they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed both under section 149(6) of the 
companies act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 of the Listing Agreement. 

In accordance with the requirements of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company. Mrs. 
Sarita Mantry (DIN: 01111382) retires by rotation and Is eligible for re-appointment 
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SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES 

The Company does not have :my subsidiary company, joint venture, and associate as on 31.03.2022. 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

The Detail of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) held during the last three years Is as under: 

Financial Year Date Time Venue 
Ended 

31" March, 2021 30••Scplcmbcr, 2021 5.00 P.M Through Video Confcrencing (VC) or Other 
Audio-Visual Means (OVAM) 

31>~ March, 2020 27th September, 2020 12.00 A.M Through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other 
Audio-Visual Means (OVAM) 

31•• March, 2019 26111Scptcmber, 2019 10.00 A.M II R-36, Gali No.lO, First Floor, An::md 
Parbat, lnd ustriol Area, New Delhi -
110005. 

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS PASSED AT THE LAST THREE AGMS 

No special resolution was passed In last three AGMs 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

The Management discussion and Analysis Report Is a part of the Director Report. 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

The Board of Directors of the Company has adopted Code of Business Conduct and Ethics in term of 
requirement of Regulation 17 of SEBi (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015. The 
company has laid d own a cod e of conduct for a ll the Board Members and Senior Management 
Personnel. All Board Members and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with 
the said code of conduct for the financial year ended 3 l " March, 2022. The dec:lardtiuu tu lhi:> effect 
signed by Mrs. Rachita Mantry Kabra, director, forms part of the report. 

CEO/ CFO CERTIFICATION 

As required Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 by the of the L1stlng Agreement, Mrs. Rachlta Mdntry Kabra, Director, certified the 
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Financial Statements. the Cash Flow Statement and the Internal Control Systems for financial year 
ending on 31.03.2022 and Is hereby enclosed. 

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
A certificate has been obtained from the PCS of the Company regarding compliance with the 
provisions relating to Corporate Governance laid down in Regulation 34 or SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosures Requirements) Regulation~. 20 I c; with the c:tock exch~nge .... The samC! is :~nncxcd to 
this report. 

DISCLOSURES 

I. Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions tha t may have Potential 

conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

Transactions with related parties if any are disclosed elsewhere ill the Balance Sheet forming 
part ofthis Annual Report. 

U. Oet<1ils of non-compliance by the Company 

The Company has complied with all the requirements of the Listing Agreement of the Stock 
Exchange as well as regulations and guidelines issued by SEBI. Hence, neither any penalty nor 
any structure has been imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchange or any other Statutory Authority on 
any matter relating to ~pite~l markets during the last three years. 

Or 

There have been Instances of receiving notice with reg;~rd to non -compliances by the Company 
and Imposing of penalties and structures on the company by stock exchange which have been 
resolved to the bem:fil uf the stock exchange, however, there were no Instances of receiving 
notice with regard to non - compliances by the Company and imposing of penalties and 
strictures on the company by SEBI or any statutory authority or on any matter related to capital 
markets, during the last three years. 

ii i. There has been a whistle blower policy and no personnel have been denied access to the 

audit committee 

Whistle blower Policy 
Capfin India Limited is firmly cummittetl to conducting Its business and relatiOnShipS with all 
stakeholders includmg employees, cu~tomers, shareholders and busmess associates m a 
manner that is lawful and ethically responsible and at all t1mes, In a way that reflects the 
Company's values. It will not tolerate attitudes or activities that constitute a breach of law or 
trust or infringe collective or Individual liberties in any way. This approach is described in the 
Company's Code of Conduct & Ethics. The Whistleblower policy formalizes Capfin's 
commitment to enabling employees and business associates to make fair and prompt 
disclosure of ci rcumstances where it is genuinely believed that a pnrt of Capfin's business is 
engaged in Inappropriate practices and that the Code of Conduct & Ethics is being violated. The 
policy sets out arrangements that encourage individuals to report concerns about unethic.~l 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violations of the Code of Conduct & Ethics, knowing that 
in so doing. they are acting In the best interests of all Capfin stakeholders. This policy also 
ensures that tho whistleblowcr will be protected from retaliation and reprisal. 
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The Company will treat all such disclosures in a sensitive manner and will endeavor to keep the 
identity of an Individual making an allegation confident ial. However. the Investigation process 
may inevltably reveal the source of the Information and the lndivldual, making the disclosure 
may need to provide a statement which cannot be kept confidential iflegal proceedings arise. 

Protection agains t retaliation 
Caplin commits to ensure that no retaliatory action, of any sort, will take place against any 
employee or business associate making a disclosure In good faith. 

Reporting 
The Compliance Officer, the Director, the Cha1rman of the Audit Committee or the Chairman of 
the Roard will be responsible for reporting any whistle blowing d1sclosures to the Audit 
Committee 

lv. Details of Compliance with manda tory requirements and adoption of t he non -mandatory 

requirements 

The Company confirms that It has fully complied with all mandatory requirements ofltegulatlon 
17 to 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations. 2015 of the 
Listing Agreement relating to Corporate Governance. 

The status of compliance with non-mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 to 27 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Listing Agreement 
are ::.s detailed hereunder· 

a) Boa rd -There was no fixed tenure for the Independent Directors as per Listing Agreement. 
However as per Companies Act. 2013 the independent directors have been appointed fo r a 
period of 5 consecutive y~c1n.. 

b) Remuneration Committee· The Company has con~liluted Nommation & Remuneration 
Committee as per Companies Act, 2013. 

c) Sha reholders' Rights- The quarterly Onancial results are published in the newspapers as 
mentioned under the heading "Means of Communication"; The results are not separately 
circulated to the shareholders. 

d) Audit qualifications- There are no audit qualifications in the Company's fi nancial 
statements for the year under reference. 

e) Disclosure of Accounting Treatment - The Company has followed the Guidelines of 
Accounting Standards laid down by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (I CAl) 
in preparation of its financial s tatements. 

f) Subsid ia ry Compa nies: The provisions relat ing to the subsidiary companies are not 
applicable to the company as the company does not have any subsidiilry company. 

g) Management: Detailed report on Management Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) forms 
part of the Dtrectors Report 
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h) Rl.sk Assessment; The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board members 
about the risk assessment and minimization procedures. These procedures arc 
periodically reviewed to ensure that board controls risk through means of a proper ly 
defined framework. 

I) Uti lization of proceeds from Preferential Issue: No proceeds have been received 
through public Issue, right i:.:.ue and preferential issue, etc. dur ing the financia l ye:~r 
ending on March 31. 2022. 

MEANS Of COMMUNJCATION 

The primary source of Information regarding the operat ions of the company is its website: 
www.caoOnlndla.com. The Company has promptly reported all material information including the 
declaration of quarterly financial results to all the Stock Exchanges, where the equity shares of lhe 
Company are listed. 

During the year, quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company were submitted 
to the stock exchanges soon after the Board Meeting approved these and were also published in the 
leading newspapers- English and Vernacular newspaper and displayed on company website. 

GENEBALSHAREHOLDERINFORMATION 

a) Annual General Meeting to be held: 

Date& Thursday, 30111 Day of September2022at 5:00 pm 
Time 
Venue V1deo Conferenclng I Other Audio-Visual Means 

b) Tentative Financial Calendar for the year 2022-23 

Financial year 1-Aprll to 31-March 
First Quarter results Second week of August 2022 
Half Yearly results Second week of 

November2022 
Third Quarter results Second week of Januarv 2022 
Results for year-end Second week of May, 2022 
•& Disclosure of 
Interest 

c) Date of Book Closure 

24thSeptember2022to 30th September 2022 (both days inclusive) 

d) Dlvtdend payment Date 

Due to insufficiency of funds. Directors of your company are unable to pay any dividend for 
this financial year. 
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The company declares Its equity shares are listed on BSE Ltd. The Company has paid the 
annual listing fee for the financial year 2021·22 to the said exchange. 

f) Stock/Company /Security 

Dematerialization lntematlonal security Identification number in NSOL & COSL for equity 
shares: INE960C01013 

g) Market Price Data: 

The last traded price of company is Rs7.35/- as on 31•t March 2022. 

h) Mfs Rag and Associates (firm Reg No. 008653C) are the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company. 
The particulars of payment of Statutory Auditor fee's, on consolidated basis given 
below· 
Particulars Amount 
Service as Statutory Auditors 10 OOOf· 
Tax Auditor . 
Other Tax Matters . 

I) Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013: 

Number of Complaints filed during the financial year 0 
Number of Cornplainls disposed off durln2 the flnanctal year 0 
Number of Complaints pending at the end of t he financial vcar 0 

j) Registrar and Transfer Agent 

The Company has a ppointed M/ s. Indus Portfolio Private Limited as Regtstrar to Transfer 
Agent who can handle share transfer work in physical form and other related activities. 

The address of the Registrar and Transfer agent of our company is: 

M/s.INDUS PORTFOLIO PRIVATE LTD 
G-65 BALl NAGAR 
NEW DELli I · 110015 
Te1No: 47671212/1213/1232 
Email: jppl@indysinyesr.com 
Website: www.indusinvestcom 

k) Share Transfer System 

The Company's shares are transferable through the depository system; However, the shares 
in physical form are processed by the registrar & Transfer Agent and approved by the 
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shareholders/ Investor's grievance Committee. The Share Transfer proc~s is reviewed by 
the said Committee. The Share Transfer in physical form is presently processed withm a 
period of 15 days from the date of receipt. Shareholders may contact the Company's 
Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (for both physical and demat seg ments) at their address 
for any assistance regarding dem:lterializatlon of shares. share t ransfers. t ransmission, 
change of address, non-receipt of annual report and any other query relating to the shares of 
the Company: 

I) Distribution ofSharehold ing: 

The shareholdlng distribution of equity shares as on 31" March 2022 given below: 

Sr . Holding of No. of share %0fTotal No. of % Of 
No. Nominal Va lue ho lders Sha re holders s hares total 

ofRs. 
1. 1-100 93 28.79 1934 0.07 
2. 101-500 129 39.91 43783 1.53 
3. 501-1000 8 2.48 5910 0.21 
4. 1001-5000 22 6.81 428 21 1.4-9 
5. 5001-10000 6 1.86 53600 1.87 
6. 10001-50000 50 15.48 12978 15 45.30 
7. 50001-100000 10 3.10 646570 22.57 
8. 10000 1·500000 5 1.55 772259 26.96 

TOTAl 323 100 2864700 100.00 

Shareh o ld lng pa tte rn !"15 o n ] 1Jt Ma rch 2022: 

Descr iption o f Investors No. of % Of 
s ha res share holdlng 
he ld 

Promoters 295888 10.33 
Financial Institut ions, Insurance Companies 0 0.00 
Banks, and Mutual Funds etc. 
ror~lgn l n~ttrutlonallnve:stors 0 0.00 
Bodies Corporate 390882 13.64 
NRis/ OCBs 0 0.00 
Clearing Member 0 0 
Indian Public:- 357515 12.48 
I) Individual shareholders holding 
Nominal s hare capital up to Rs. 21acs. 

li) Individual shareholders holding nominal share 1820415 63.55 
capital more than Rs. 21acs. 
Others 0 0 
Total 28 64 700 100 % 

a) De ma te rializa tion of sha res and liquidity 
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The Company shares can now be traded in dcmatcriolized form and have to be delivered in 
the dematerialized fo rm to all Stock Exchanges. To enable shareholders an easy access to lhe 
demat system; the Company has executed agreements with Depositories namely National 
Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository Services Ltd (CDSL). 

b) Investors' Correspondence may be addressed to: 

The name :lnd designation of the Compliance Officer is Mrs.Prlyanka Chaudhary, Company 
Secretary of the company. The shareholders can get In touch with compliance offlcer on all 
legal and Secretarial matters relating to the company. 

Address for Communication/ Registered Office: 

M/s CAPFIN INDIA LIMITED 
lC/ 13, Basement, RaJnigandha Building. New Rohtak Road, New Delhi · 110005 

Outstanding GDRs/ A DRs/ Warrants or any Convertible Instruments, conversion date and 
likely Impact on equity 
Outstanding GDRs/ A DRs/ Warrant.'> or any Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely 
1m pact on equity are not applicable on the company. 

Plant locations 
Not Applicable 

Date: 07.09.2022 
Place: New Delhi 
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DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 
PERSONNEL WITH THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE 
LISTING AGREEMENT 

As required by Regulation 17(5) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Dtsclosures Requirements) 
Regulations. 2015 of the Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, this is to confirm that the 
Company has adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics for all Board Members and Senior Management 
of the Company. The Code is available on the Company's website. I fu rther confirm that the 
Company has in n:spect of the flnandal year ended 31 March 2022, received from all the Board 
Members and Senior Management of the Company, a declaration of compliance with the Code, as 
applicable to them. For Lhe purpose of this decl;~r;~tion, Senior M:magemcnt Team shall mean heads 
of the various functions of the Company. 

Place: Delhi 
Date: 30.05.2022 

for Cap fin India limited 

Rachlta Man try Kabra 
Whole Time Director 

Din: 03414391 

Declaration by Mrs. Rachlta Mantry Kabra, Director, under Regulation 17 ofSEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Listing Agreement 
regarding compliance with code of Conduct 

In accordance with Regulation 17 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requiternents) 
Regulations. 2015 of the Listing Agreement, I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the Senior 
Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance with code of Conduct, as 
applicable to them. for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022. 

Date: 30.05.2022 
Place: New Delhi 
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Certification by Mrs. Rachlla Manuy Kabra, Director, pursuant to Regulation 17 (8) of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 of the Listing 
Agreement regarding financial statements 

l, Rachlta Man try Kabra, certify that: 

a) I have reviewed the finan cial statements and the c~sh now of Caplin India Limited ("the 
company") for the year ended March 31,2022 and to the best of my knowledge and behef: 

l. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement ur umit any material fact or 
contain statements that m1ght be misleading. 

li. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in 
compliance with existing accounting standards, app licable laws, and regulations. 

b} There are, to the best ol my knowledge and belief, no transact ious entered by the company 
during the year that are fraudu lent, illegal. or violative of the Company's code of conduct; 

c) I accept responsibility for establishmg and maintaining Internal conlrOJ) for financial reporting 
and that I have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal control systems of the company 
pertaining to finand:~l reporting. There are no deficiencies In the design or operation of internal 
control. 

d) I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there arc no 

1) Slgntflcant changes In tlu! internal control over finan cia l rcpo<ting dur ing the year. 

2) Significant changes In accounting policies during the year; and th:lt the same have been 
disclosed In the notes to the financial statements; and 

3) Instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the Involvement therein. if 
any, of the management or an employee having a significant role In the company's internal 
control sy:.tem over financial reporting. However, during the year there was no such 
Instance. 

Date: May30, 2022 
Place: New Delhi 
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-sd-
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DEEPANSHI JAIN & ASSOCIATES 
COMPANY SECRETARIES 
OFF: C-7/75, First Floor, Sector-7, Rohini, Delhi-110085 
MOB: +91-8800984002 EMAIL ID: csdeepanshijain@gmail.com 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON COPRORATE GOVERNANCE 

To 
The Members of Capfin India Limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Capfin India Limited for the 
year ended as on 31 stMarch, 2022 as stipulated in Regulation 34 ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and clause 49 of the Listing Agreement of the said company with the Stock 
Exchange. 

The compliance of the condition of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our 
examination as carried out in accordance with the Guidance Note on Certification of Corporate Governance 
(as stipulated in Regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015) issued by the Institute of Companies Secretaries oflndia and was limited to review the procedures and 
implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 
Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of the opinion on the Financial Statements of 
the company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanation given to us we certify that 
the company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above­
mentioned listing agreement. 

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended 31st March, 2022, no investor 
grievances are pending against the Company for a period exceeding 15 days as per records maintained by the 
company which are presented to the Board of Directors of the Company. 

We further state that such compliances are neither an assurance as to future viability of the company nor the 
efficiency or the effectiveness with which management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

For Deepanshi Jain & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

-sd-
(CS Deepanshi Jain) 
Proprietor 
M.No. F10651 
CPNo.14826 
UDIN No. -F010651D000914323 
Place: Delhi 
Date: September 5, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To 
The Member& 
Capfill lncliaLimited(CIN-L74999DL1992PLC048032) 

Report on theAHJtorth StaDdalonei!IDJmdiJ.Statemem 

OpiDion 

A·622, Sector 46, Noida 
Gau!am. Buddha Nagar, 
Ut1ar l'mdelih-201301 
+91-9312238428 

We have audited the accompany:ing annual financial stmmems ofCapfln India IJmlted ("the Company") 
CIN-L 74999DL1992PLC048032 wbichco~ !he balance &hect 811 atMa:r:dl31, 2022, and 1he 1118tcm.ent 
of profit 8Dd loss (including olber comprehemive illcome), statanem of changes in equity and s1atemcnt of 
cash ftows for the year ended, and notes to 1he !1andalonc financial statements, including a SIIIDIIl.IIIY of the 
significallt aCCOUD.tiDg policies 8Dd olbe.r aphmatory information ~ tefCI'I:\ld to 811 "lllandalone 
financialslatlmlmts"). 
In om opinion md to 1he best of our information and acconliDg to the gpl!!llll!jollll given to ua.lhe afor:ell8id 
standalone fin.lmcial statem.enl:S give 1he information requin:.cl by the Companies Act. 2013 ('<Act") in the 
mann.er so r:equired and givo a tru.o and fair vic.lw in eonfonnity wi!h the &CCOlDl.ting principles generally 
accepted ill. India iw:llldiD,g 1he InclianA«<A•nl ing S1lllldaros (" IndAS") prescribed under section 133 of the 
Act rud. with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standanls) Rules, 2015, 811 amsdedand o!her aec:oml1ing 
principles gen.erall.y aeeepted in India. of1he Slate ofa1fairs of1he Company 811 atM.at:eh 31,2022, and its 
profit(including other comprehemive ill.come), the changes in equity and its cash flows for1he year ended on 
that elate. 

Bull forOptnlon 
We ~ourauditiD.~ wilh 1he Standtlrd& on Auditing (SAs) ~ified un.der~lion 143(10) 
of the Companies Act. 2013 \Act"). Our responsibilities undmthoso Standards are turtlurrdascribed. in the 
Auditor's Rl:qonBibililiell for the Audit of1he Stand•'nne Fill.imcial. statements section of our report. We nre 
independent of 1he Company in accordance with !he cocle of etbics issued by 1he Institute of Charten:d 
Aec;ountants of India ('1CAI") together with the crthical RJC!.Wmnllll.ts that are reliMIDl to our audit of tho 
standalone financial statements under the provisions of 1he Act 8Dd Rules made thCte under, 8lld we have 
fuliill.ed our other ethical respown'bilities in a.eco:rdancle with !hese nlqllinmelltll and 1he code of ethics. We 
believe 1hat the audit evidence we Mve obeaiD.ed is sallicient 8Dd appropriate 10 provide a baais for our 
opinion on the standalone financial S!m.ments 

Key Alldlt Matten 
Key audit lll.ldters are those lll8tterB that, in our p:rofeuional judgment, wem of most signifiesnee in our 
!JIIdit of the fin mal statemenl8 oflhe cuac:ut year. These maUen! we:re addraJ8ed i11.1he context of our 
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A·622, Sector 46, Noida 
Gau!am. Buddha Nagar, 
Ut1ar l'mdelih-201301 
+91-9312238428 

audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, aDd in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not 
providoaHp111'8teopiniononthe1ematun. 

InfOI"ID.I1lon Other than 1he Ffn•Mill StatementluciAuditor'IR.eport'l'lle:reon 
1M company's Board of Dinlctors is 1.1!11p0D.Sible for the ofhmo information. The othlll' information 
~ the information included in the Mallagemeat Dillcus8ion and .Analysis, Board's Report 
including AnDmalr:e6 to Board.'& Report. Bullinet~B Rl.!&ponBibility Report, Cmpomto Govml.llll:Ce and 
Shareholdets Information, but does oot inchld.e the s11mdalone financial statanems and our a:aditots report 
thcm:ou. 
Our opinion on the standalone financial sl3tlilmen1s does not cover the other infonnation aDd we do not 
c:lpiCIIIIIIIIY form ofas1J\1I11111Ce ~onclus:Um thereon. 
In connection with our audit of the standalone fin.an.cial statements, our responsibility is to read the othtll' 
information and in doing so, consider whether the othlll' informalion i1 IIUibi!rially incon~~istmt with tho 
standalonefina:llc:ialstatemen18,orourkDOwledgeobtainedduringtb.eCOUI'IICofaudit(1rotherwisceppca!'llto 
bemateriallymis!tllted. 
1(. based onlhe work we have performed, we CODCble Chat thc::te i8 a maWrial misllta1cment of this other 
information; weare~ torepottthat&ct. Wehaveoothingtoreportinthismgard.. 
Muaaemeat'•Rnpons:lbllity for1hest111clllOtH O:aandaJ rtatem.erlt 
The Compeny's Boanlofl>.irectol!l is responsible for the maUm 81llted in Section 134(5) of the Compe:Dies 
Act, 2013 (''the Act") with r:espect to the pR!plll'81i.on aDd prmlltalion of thi!IIO standalone financial 
!ltatemeats to give a true and fair view of the fina:llc:ial position, fina:llc:ial performa1111e (inchldiDg otht1l' 
compii!hllllllive income), cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with accomning 
prineipleB gczei8!ly ampted in IDdia, includiDg the Indian Accolllltillg Standard8 apecified in the 
Companies (Indian ""ountill& Standard.s) Rules, 201S (as amended) 1tllder Section 133 of the Art This 
respollBibility also includoll maintenance of adequate 114:C01Dl.ting J:eCOJ:dll in acconlance with tho provision& 
of the Act f(lr safeguarding of the aase1IJ of the Company ll1d for preventing ll1d detecting 1iauds and otht1l' 
imgularities; selection and application of appropriate accomningpolicies; makingjudgmllll.1ll and esti!l\lltM 
Chat are reasonable and pt\lde'nl; and defligo. implementation andmain1e.Dal1ce of adequate intallal fiD.aDci.al 
comrols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the aa:1lllii.:Y and complmlness of the accomnins 
recordli, relevant to the pieplllation and pmeu.tation of the 8!aDdaloDe financialatatanenta lhat give a true 
and fairview aDd are free from material millllt:a!anent, wheth.erdue to fraud or mor. 

In preparill,g file 81aDdalonc financial lllimealll, management is responsible for assessing the Company's 
abilitytocominueasagoingconcern,disclosingasapplicable,III.Bttmlrelatedtogoingconcemandusiogthe 
going concern basis of~ Ullle~JS management eidl.er intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
opexldiollll, or has no realistic altml.ldive but1od.o so. 
TheBoardofDirectcmuueie6poruribleforoverseeingtheColllplllly'sfina.ncialreportillgproc;e118. 
Audlton'lteepoDtlldlltyfortheAHitofdleStlmdaJon.eli'llumdllStatemmta 
Our objectives are to obmin m!SOnable assurance about whether the financ:ial S131em.ellts as a whole are licie 
from maWrial mislllitement, whe1htr due to :fiaud or error, and to issue an anditor'steport 1hat includes om: 
opinion. Reasonable a.ssmance is a high level of a.ssmance, but is not a g1llll'8lttllO that an audit condw:ted in 
accorda:ocewith SAil will alwaYB ~tamaterial millstatemcnt when it ais18. Miastatemen18 c:anarisefi:om 
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fnwd or f;110l and ~ considmd material if; individually or in 1he ~. Chey coold n:asonably be 
axpec:Uid to influence the economic decisions of WilliS tal:en on Cho basis of this stanclalono fin.rmcial 
~tam ems . 

.AJJ part of an audit in~ wilh S.AJJ, we c:xer:ciae pro1i::nianal. judgment RDd maintain pro1i::srianal. 
skqrticismtflrouahoutdl.ea:u.ttit. Wealso: 

• Identity aud ftS8e!l3 Cherisks ofmaterial misslatementofthe 818lldalone fill.alllcia1 statements, VlheCher 
due to fnwd or error, dosign and perfonnauditprocedwes r:o~~ponsive to Chose rub, and obtain audit 
evidencedlatillsuflicimta:od&IJIIXOprilltetoprovideabas:isforolltopinion. TheriskofDOtdetecting 
amatmalmisctstememresullingtiomfraudishigherthanforone-wtinstmmenor,asfraudmay 
involve collwri.on, forgery, intentional omiariona, miMepx aa~latio1111, or Che ovcuide of iDtJ:mal 

comrol. 
• Obtain an II1I.C!ema:ndiD of intemal control A~lmmt to the audit in order to dosign audit proceduros 

Chat~ appropriate in fbe cimlmstances. Under section 143(3)(i) ofdl.e Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also r:olpOll!lible for Ol!JlRi'Silin,g Ollf opinion on wbe1her tlul company has adequale intemal fin.rmcial 
c;ontro!B wilh refm::ace to standalone fiDaneial s1ameniB in pliK'e and lhe opcaalillg c:ffecti.vc:Detill of 
such controls. 

• E'Yllhlat.o Che ~18 of ='l11lling policies Ulled and tho reasonablm.et~~~ of IICOOlDlting 
estjmates a:odrelateddisclOIJU!eS made bymanagem'll!t. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness ofman.agemem.'s uso of the going concern basis of accoiiiitin,g awl, 
based on the audit evidence obtailled, whether a ma1cri.al UDC>e.ttai.nty exisll related to events or 
conditionstbatmayc:astsigllificautdoabtontheCompany'sabilil.ytocontinu.easagoingconcan.If 
weconeludethatamateria!UDtceitaintyexists, weareJequixedtodrawattentioninollfiRUtitox'areport 
to the retauld d:isclosuree in Che fin.rmcial81111ements or. if such disclo~~~~m are iDadequate. to modify 
our opinion. Ollt conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to tho elate of Ollf auditor's 
1ep01t.. However, flllure events or conditions may cause the CompaDy to ceese to continue a& a going 
c:oncem. 

• E'Yllluate the ovmll. preflell.tation, structme and content of the financial. etateme.ots, including the 
disc!Dsurles, and whether the financial staten:lal!srepmeut the uncltrlyins transa.ctioWl and evems in 
a'IDJII!nerthatachieves fairprellentllli.cm. 

Materiality ill the magnitude of lhe misslatemlm!ll in the financial statemems that, individually or in 
aggz~«te, ~ itprobabledlat dl.e~cdecillionsofal.'eMODIIblykllowledgeallle userofthe:liDtmci.al 
statmnems may be int'1wmGed. We consider quantitativo lll.lltmiality and qualitativo factors in (i) planning the 
seopc of our IIUdit work and in evaluatmg the rarullB of Ollf woik; and (ii) to evaluate the c:ffe<:t of any 
identifiedmisstatanemsindl.e811llual financilllsta=ntlll!ll. 
We commwncate wilh tho so chraged with governance Ngaxding, 81110ng other m.atttmi, lhe plauned scope 
and timing of 1he audit and aigDifle4nt IIUdit findin,g9, iw:lllding any lligniticant deficieDci.ee ill intea~al 
comrol thatwo identify during o11ta:udit. 
We also provide Chose eharged wilhgovetllltlllce wilh a statement lhat we have complied wilh releYllntelbical 
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~reganlillg indepaldence, 8Ddto<:<>mrrranicetewith them all relatioll.8hips llldoeher~ dlat 
may!Ul!Onablybethoughtto'-ronourindependence,andwhexeapplic:able,relatedsafegua:r:ds. 
From themattm communicated with 1hose charged wi1h ~.we determine those mauualhat were 
of most signiticatl!lle in tho audit of tho standalone financial stmemeuta of tho C'IIITelltyear and.IIR!therefOR! 
1he by audit ma1tei&. We de8cribe 1hese mat1en in our anditor'e report lllllen law or regulation ~Jude& 
pqblic discloiiUI"e about the matter or when, in ememely rare ~mnr.:a, we detennine that a malta' 
should not be communicated in ourJ:tlll(llt bec•nw the adWISe consequences of doing so would R!&SOnably 
beexpectedtooutweighthepublic.inta:estbellefi.l8ofsuchcomnnmicttion. 
Report on Other LqalandReplatory Reqalremeat!l 
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor'& Report) Order, 2020, issued by the CeD.U'al Gove.t'llllle'.D. of 

Indiaintermsofsub-section (1l)ofsection 143 oftheAct("theO:rdd').andon the basis ofs.u:hchecb 
of the boob and reeordB of the Company u wo comidcml appropriate and acccn:dingto the information 
and explanations giveD to 'WI, we give in the Amexure A, a 811tement on the ma1tei& specified in 
paragraphs 3 a:nd4 of the Order. 

2. AsR!CJ.IIiR!d. by Section 143 (3)ofthoAc:t, wen!pOrtdlat: 

a) We have scruafrt and ob1Bined all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and beliefweRJ necenazy forthopui]IOllellof our aodit. 

b) In our opinion, proper boob ofBCCO\IIItasrequired.by law have been bpt bytheCompayso &r as it 
appoan fromoura:aminarionofthose books. 

<:) The Balance Sheet, the Slatl:ment of Profit aDd toe& (illcluding other comprehell.8ive illeome), the 
Cash Flow Statanem and the S1111emelrt of Chan,ges in Equity dealt wi1h by this Report 8R! in 
agreement with the boobofBCCOunt. 

d) In our opinion, the afon:aid 81811dal011e finan.cial 81atemenl8 comply with the Indian ACCOU!lting 
Standaxds specified undar Section 133 of the Act, R!lld with the CGmpanies (Indian Accounting 
Standaxds) Rnles,20 1 S,a88mended; 

e) On 1he basis of the wliltllli repn~senlll1ioll.8received from the dinlc:tD:rs as on Man:h 31,2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, naae of the dirmori i& diiK(IUI1ified a& on Mareh 31, 2022 from 
bein3appointedas a director in tenDs of Section 164(2) oftheAi:t. 

f) With r:et~poct to the adeqWIC)' of tho immusl financial 1:0ntrolB wi1h :refeRJnce to the sta.ndalono 
fiDancial 8111tements and 1he openltina eflbctiveness of such controls of the CGmpany, refu to our 
sepamteR~portin "Annlll!lii:&-B". 

g) With rerpect to the O!her maltl:fi to be iDcbbl in Che Audi1or's Report in ~ with the 
requirsnllll!:Sofsection 197(16)of1heAct,asamended: 
In our opinion and to the best of our informalion and accor:ding to the explanatiou given to ua, the 
remuneraliO:Il paid by the Compay to illJ di!ectors cluriD& the yeer is in e.cco:rdaDce wi1h the 
provisions of section 197 oftheAct. 

h) With fellllect to1he othcrmaum to be included in 1heAllditoD' Report in~ wid! Rule 11 of 
1he Companies (AllditandAuditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our knowledge and 
belief and aeeosding to Che information andexple.nali<lii.S given to us: 
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(i) The Company hauo pending litigations aut Man:h 31,2022 on il8 fina:acial position in ili 
standalone financial staulmllll1ll. 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-tam cOII.U'acta. including de.rivati.ve CO'D.U'aC18 aa at 
Man:h31,2022furwhic:hthllftiW~Wmatmial for :seeableloS~e&. 

(iii) There were DO amoun18 whieh were required to k 1l:1lnBtl:m:d, to the Inveetor Education and 
Pro~on Ful!dbytheCompmylfwinstheyearmded.Man:h31,2022. 

Por RAG &Anociatos 
Cb.artaedAcooun1all18 
ICAI Film Registration IIIIIIIber: 0086S3C 

-$(1-

CANWID.Gapta 
Pattne:r 
McmbcnhipNo: 541696 
tnDEN:22541696~9566 

Place: Noida 
Date: 30"'May, 2022 
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Am!.emre-Ato hdependentAIIditor'a Report on the fiaantial statemeaq of Capfia hclia Limi1ed for 
the year elided Mardl31,2022 
(Referrecl to ia paragnph t UD.IIer 'Report oo. other lepl ucl regulatory req11irealeo.q' eedioo. of our 
report ofev• dllte} 

(i) (a)TheCompanyhaamainlailledproperrocordsshowiDgfullparlicWars.includingquao.lilali:vedetail& 
andsituation,offixedasset5. 

(b) As e~plained to u, the6e fixed a.ssete ha:ve been physically wrified by the ~ at 
~nableintervals;nollll)'matmaldismlpanciesW'C.!Nnoticedonsuchvmfica1ion. 

(e) Accordiogto the iofuanati.on and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 
1be re<:ords of1he Compmy, dl.e title deeds of immovable Pfoperli.ei (olherdam immovable properties 
~the Company is the lessee) disclosed in the sl!mdalone fin.lmcial sllltmlents ~held in the name 
oftheCompany. 

(d)Aeeordingtotheinformationandexplanarion.~~giventousa:ndon1hebasisofoorexeminarionofthe 

records of fbe Compmy, 1be Compmy has not revalued itlJ Proprny, plallt lll1d equipment (including 
Rigbt-of-useassets)orlntang~llleasselllorbothduringtheyear. 

(e)At.cord:mgtotheiafo:ana1ionlllldexplanationsgivmtousandonthebasisofourexaminarionofthe 
reco!dsoftheCompmy,there~~~enop:roceedillgsinitiatedorpendingagainsttheCompanyforholding 

lillY beDami propel'ty 1ll1ilel' the Prahi'biliOil ofBenami Property'I'nlnsactiOIIlJAct, 19881111d roles made 
there under. 

(ii) (a) At.cordiog to the information and explanation given to us, the company is engaged in tmdin.g of 
~. Furlherthe company hadnodoringinventorywhatsoevca:. 

(b)Aeeordingtotheinformationandexplanarion.~~giventousa:ndonthebasisofoorexemjnationofthe 

recorosofdl.eCompauy,theCornpaDyhasnot1abneD,ywOJkingcapitallimitlJ:Il:omdl.ebuk. 

(ill) At.cordiDg to the illformalion and expl&lllliOIIlJ gi.va. to u and on. the baBill of our c:xminalion of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made mvmments except investments in listed company 
(Rudmbhi&hck Eo!cqJriset Ltd), provided guarantee or IICCUrity or gran1ed any advaiJ.ee6 in the nature 
of loans, secured or~ to CQmpanies, firms.limite41iability ~or lillY other parties 
during the year. 

(a) The Company has not pnted. any loans, secured or 1III.SeCIII.ld, to films, limited liability 
pilllDerBhiptlorany olherpal1iellduriDg the year. 

A. Based on the audit procedllnlS cani.ed on by us and as per the information and explanation.~~ given to 
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B. Basedontheauditproc:edlln!Sca:oiedonbymandasperthoinfmmationa:nd o;plmationsgiven 
to 11.11, tile Com~Jmy has not granted lOtliiB to a party ofber1hanBiibsidi!llies. 

(b) Aeeosding to 1he information a:Dd explanalions given to us and balled 011. 1he audit~ 
~byu.s, weamoftileopinionth.attiletmnsa:ndcowlitionsoftilelo.msgivmareprimafil.cie, 
not prejudicial to du: intamoftile Com~Jmy. 

(c) Aa:o:rdingto the infoJ:ma!ion and explanations given tom and on the basis of our ~mamination of 
lhc records of the Company, in tile case ofloana gi.ven,lhc rep&y=ntofprincipal. and paymem of 
inmrest has bem stipulated and the repaymen!S or recmpts have '-n regular except loan given to 
KliBum. Gwwb!. 

(d) Aa:o:rdingto the infm:mation and explanations given tou and on tile basis of our examination of 
lhc ~ros oftbe Company, there iBDO ova:due WI10IIII.t for more than llinety dayll inmpect of!Oili.IJ 
givenexc:eptinc:aseofiYag Readymixa:ndKUSIIID Omnents. 

(e) Acc:o:rdinstotheinfm:mationaud.explanationssiventousa:ndonthebasisofoureuminationof 
the m;mds of tile Company, tilere iB no loan given fulling due: during the year, which hall been 
renewed or extended or ftesh loau give~~ to settle Che overdues of existing loau give~~ to Che same 
party. 

(f) Aa:o:rdingto the infm:mationandexplanations given to us and on the basis of our ~mamination of 
lhc ~of the Company, 1he Company hall givm lOtliiB repayable on dc:mand wilbout &pe<:ifying 
anytennsorperiodofrepayment. 

(iv) According IOtbe information and explanations given toU&a:Ddon the basis of our examination ofehe 
reconls, tile Company has not given any loans, or provided any gual'8lltell or security as specified 
1mder Sec:tion 185 oflhc CompanieaAct, 201311Dd the Company has not provided lilly guaramee or 
security as specified 1lllder Section 186 of the Companies !u:t, 2013. Farther, the Company has 
eomplicd with tileproviBionsofSeclion186 of !he ColllplllliesAct, 2013 in relation to loans given and 
investmerrtll made. 

(v) The Com~Jmy hall not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits fiom tile 
public.Accordingly,clause3(v)oftileO:rderisnotapplic:able.. 

(vi) Accordini to Che iDfo:an.a1ion Wild explanations givm to us, the Central Govet'llmellt has not 
~"bed themaintc:Da~J.eeofcoetrec;ords 1Dl.dm'Secti.on 148(1) oflheCompa;oi.e&Act, 2013 for tho 
proda.c1»~byit(andlorservi.cesprovidedbyit).Acc:o:rdinsly,clau8e3(vi)ofthe0nleriiJ 

not applicable. 
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(vii) (a) AC<:OidiD,g to the information and explanations ginn to UB and the IeCOidi of the Company 
examined by us, in O!ll' opinion, the Company is geDei11lly regular in deposiliDg undispu1ed 81atuto%y 
dues in respect of p:rovidmtt fuwl, employee's state insumnce, smvice tax and du1y of excise thou,gh 
lhere has been a slight delay in a few CMee,IIDd is regular in depositing UDdisputed IJtllutory dues, 
iw:ludini sales tax, income tax, duty of customs, value added tax, cess aud ocher matmal81atuto%y 
dw:li,uapplic;able, wilhtheapproprialeau!horili.~:~~. 

(b) Acconling to the information and expllmatiOD!I given to us, no uncli!p\IUid amolm15 paysble in 
~t of provident fuDd, employees' state illaUI'IIIce, in.C>ome-lBJ:, salet- tax, se.rv:ice tax, goods and 
service tax, da1y of CUBtoiDB, duty of excise, valut~ added. tax, cess and other m.aterialaatumry chJ.es 
were in arrean 1111 at March 31, 2022 for a period of more thsn six month• from the date they became 
payable 

(viii) Acooroin,g to the information and e;xplanations given toUB and on the basis of o~~texammmon of the 
IKOids of tho Company, the Company has not Sllmllldered or disclosed any trlmsactiOilll, pnm0111ly 
UllleeOidedasincomeintheboobofaooowrt,inthetaxasseumentsUIIde.rtheiD.com.e-taa:Aet, 1961 
IUl inco:tne dming theyeaz:. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations giveD to UB and on the basi& of olltexamination of 
the RCorda of the Company, the Company did not have any loans or borrowings from any lender 
during the yec. Accordillgly, clause 3(ix)(a) of the Oflie:ris not t~PPlicable. 
(b)Accordingto the info:anation and explanations given to UB and on the basis of our examination of 
the reeonla of the Company, the Comp1111y has not been declared a willful detliulta: by any bank or 
financialinstillltionorgovernmentorgovemmemaulbority. 
(e)Acc;ordingto the infonnation and explanations givm to us by thomanagmumt, the Company has 
notobtainediii.Ytermloans.Accordillgly,elause3(ix)(e)ofthe0fl1erisnottll'Plicable. 
(d) Accordin,g to the infonna!ion and explanations given to UB and on an ovemll9amination of the 
balance sheet of the Company, we report Chat no fimde uve been raised on short-ll:ml. basis by the 
Company.Acco:rdingly,elause3(n)(d)ofthe0rdesisnott~PPlicahle. 
(e) Accotding to !he informaUon and explana1icm8 given to us and on 1111. overall examination of the 
fiDancia18111tement8oftbeComJHiiiy, wereportthatlheComJHiiiyhasnot1akmiii.Yfimdefromiii.Y 
entity or pcm10n on account of or to me« the obligations of its subsidiaries as defined 1mdm' the 
Companies Act, 2013. Aceordingly, clause 3(ill.)(e) ofthe Older is not applicable. 
(f) According to !lui info:anation and explanations given to us and pnx:odures performed by WI, we 
IqJOitthaUheCompaay hasDOtl'llised loansduriDg the year on the pledge of secwities held in iii 
subsidiariesasdefined1WcltrtheCompaniesAet,2013.Accord:in&IY,elau.&e3(n)(f)oftheOrderis 
notapplic;able. 

(x) (a) The Company has not mised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further :public otli!r 
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(illcllldillgdebtins1mments).A~y. clawic3(x)(a) oflhe Onler ianotapplieable. 
(b)A«l01'din8to1he infulmation and explanatioUII siven to us and 011 the 'be.!lis of ournammation of 

the rec::orda of tho Company, the CGmpany has not mado any prefenmtial allotment or private plaeement of 
sb.aresorfullyorpart!yconvellibledebeutul:esduring1heyeu.~roing)y.clause3(x)(b)ofthe0rderienot 

applieable. 

(xi) (a) Based on examination of1he boob and records of the Company andaccordingto1he infonn.ation 
and explanatiODB given to WI, coll8iderill,g the principlea of mataiality outlined in Standards on 
Auditin& we report dlat no traud by the Company or on the Company has beeD noticed or reported 
during the course of tho audit. 

(b) AC()(Irdiog to the iofmmation and explmatiODB given to us, no ftl,pOl't under sub-section (12) of 
Sedion 143 oflhe Cowpanies.AI;t. 20U has bec:u filed by Chuuditol'8 in FomJ. ADT-4 u piCIIC3'ibed 
und.er Rule 13 ofCompmies(Auttit md.Auditol'8) Rul~ 2014 with theCentml Government. 

(c) No wbislle blowercomplaints:reeeived by the CGmpany during theye«r. 

(xil) ~rdiDgto1heinformatiaD.and aplmatiODB given to us, theCompmyia notaNidhi Company . 
.AJ::cordin,gly,clause3(xil)ofthe0nlerisnotapplicable. 

(xiii) In oar op:illion and according to the infulmation and explanatiODB siven to us, the 1l'&ll.llaCtioll8 with 
n~lated parties 111e in compliance with Seetions 177 and 188 of1ho CGwpanies Act, 2013, where 
applic.!lble, and the details of the rela1ed party ll:lmBactiODll have been disclosed in 1he slall.dalone 
finaw:ial stateweuts as Mquiredbytheapplic.!lblo lndianAc:counling Standards. 

(xiv) (a) Based on information and explanations provided to u and our audit p:roceclu:re$. in our opinion. 
the Company does not have an inblmal IIUdit ~~}'litem commmsumto with the size and natur:e of its 
business. 
(b) We have not co:ruriclered 1he inmrna! audit reports of the CGwpany hsco not n!pOl't wu placed 
befOJeWI, 

(xv) In our opinion and~ to the information and aplanati01111 given to WI, the CGwpany hu not 
entered into any non<ash transactions with its directors or persons COtW.eCte<l to its dilecll01'8 and 
hmco,provisioll8ofSection 192ofthoCompani.esAct,2013~~~enotapplic.!lblototheCompany. 

(xvi) (a) The Company is n~gimed. Wlder section 45-IA of the Resexve Bank of India Act, 1934 vide 
1\\gisllalion no. 14.00643 ~ 06/04/1998. Therefore, the provia:ions of clanae (XVI) or p11111gi11pb 3 
of the Order arc applicable and have heal complie-d with. 

(b) Tbe Co:wpe:a.y is regiatmd under sectiOD4S·IA of the R.eierve Bank ofln.dia Act, 1934 vide 
n~gimationno. 14.00643 dated06/04/1998. Thexefuxe, the provisions ofclause(XVI)orp~~n~gn~ph 3 
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(c)Tho Company is not a Con! lnvestmem Company (CIC) as defined in the n~gulatio!lll made by the 
Jtt;serveBankoflndia.Accor:dillgly,clausc3(xvi)(e)oftheOrderiJnotepplicab1e. 

(d) According to the information and explmationa provided to ua duriDg the course of audit, the 
Groupdoesnoth.aveanyCIC.Acco:rdingly, therequimnentsofclause3(:r.vi)(d)arenotapplicable. 

(xvii) The Company lw not illcurred~ losselJ in the CUlmlt 8lld in the immediately preceding fina:acial 
yoar. 

(xviii) 'I'IIe:ni has '-n l!.!t:iteilWillt of the &talu!D:Iy auditors durin.g the year. We have tabn inm consideration 
the i&me8, objecli01111 orconcemai!Iiaed by the outgoinglmditorB; 

(xix) Acconling to the infOIID81ion and explanations given to us and on tho basis of the financial ratios, 
ageinglllldexpecteddatesofreelizationoffinanciala.sseu811dpaymentoffinancialliabilitie!l,other 
information accompanying the financial S1lltlmleirts, our knowledge of the Board ofDinlc:to:rs and 
llllll1llgQI1CIIt plms lll1d based on our exminatiOD of the evideDI;e supporting 1he IISSU!IJIItiOns, 
nothinglw come to our attattion, which causes us to believe that any !II.IIW'iai11DUdainty msts as 
onthedateoftheauditreportthallheCompanyillnotcapableofmcctingilllliabilitieaexistingatthe 
dateof'belaneesheetuandwhell1heyfallduewilhinaperiodofoneyearfromthe'balaneesheetdate. 
We, howev«, !1ate that this is not an &ll8ll11lnCe as to the fulunl viability of the Company. We further 
state that ourn::posling ill based on the facts up to the date of the aaditiq)Ort 8lld we neither give any 
guaranteenoranyassum~cethatallliabilitiesfallingduewitbinaperiodofoneyearfromthcbalance 

sheet date, will getdisclwgedbylhe Companyaaand when they fall due. 

(xx) In our opinion and acconling to the information and explanations given to us. tho wmpany is not 
n:quin::d to spent the mo:aey'IIDderSeetion 135 of1heCompillie~~Act. 2013 pUl'llllallttoany projed. 
Acconlingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable. 

For RAG &Anociates 
ChartaedAccouutanl8 
ICAI Film Registration IIUIIIber: 008653C 

·Sd-
CANikhiJ. Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No: 541696 
UDIN:225'41696A.JWLZN9566 

Place: Noida 
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.Annrmre B to the Independent Auclilor't Report on the 1tandllo.se fiDanri•' 11atementll or Caplin 
lndlaiJmltedforthyewuded Mlln:h31,20H 

ReportontheintemalfinJmcialcontrolswithefemu:etotheafol:esaid&tandalonefin.ancialstatemmmuncler 
Clause (i) ofSu~lion3 of~lion 143 oflheCompani.:aA.et,.2013 
(Reli!m:d to in paragraph 2(a)(t) 1mller 'Report on Other Legal811dRegulatozy Requimneuts' section of our 
reportofevcadate) 

Opbl.lon 

We have andited the internal finJmcial comrols with refemu::e to stawlalone financial statemenlll of Caplin 
lndiaLimitcd("lheColllpiJily")aaot'3l~h2022inc;oujlmctionwithoorauditof1he&t!!T!d"loncfinancial 
slab:mealtlloftheCompany aa at and for1heyeerendedon1hatd&Ul. In ooropinion. the Compenyhas, in all 
material respects. adequate intemal financial c:ontrols with n~fere~ to standalone financ:ial statemmts and 
IJI!ch in1emal financial colllrOls were opeulting elfectively aa at 31 ~h 2(}22, based on1he intx:mal 
financial c:ontrols with efenmce to standalone financial staulnmts criteria established by 1he Company 
COIIBidering 1he essential componeadll ofinlmlal colllr:olstated in the Guidance Note on Audit ofintx:mal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repo~tingissu.ed by the ImtituteofCha:rten!d.Aecollltt!!T!.1s of India (1he 
"Guidance Note"). 

Manacement'eReepONfbtlltyfor lntemalli'lne-dal Controlil 

TheCompany'sm!!T!agmu:misrapon.sibleforestablishmglllldm.aivtainingin!m!alfinJmcialeontrolsbased 
on the internal control over financial Iepoi ting criteria C818blillhcd by !he Company COIIBidering 1he esaenlial. 
componenlll of ima'nel comrot 81llted in the Guidan.ce Note on Audit ofllrtemal Financial Con!rols OVII:6 
Fin.ancialRA!pottingisiJI!edbytholnstituteofebarmedAccounta.ntsaflndia('ICAI'). TheseNSpOnsibilitios 
include the design. implementation and meintenan.ce of adequate inlmlal financial colllrO'ls that wa:e 
operating elfectively for ensuring 1he orderly and efficimt conduct of it! business, ineluding adherence to 
COIJlPISII.Ys policies, !he sa&guanling of its asse18, 1he prevemtion and d.etecticn of fie:ads 8Dd errors, 1he 
8Cali'8CY and completeness of !he aocowrting II!COids, and the timely prepa:ration of eliable financial 
infol'llllltion, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Audlton'RelpoattldHty 

Our rapon.sibility is to e:xpms an opinion on the Company's intemal financial controls over financial 
xepoiling based on our sudit. We conduc;ted our audit in aeeordmcc wi1h the Gaidance Note on Audit of 
lntemal Financial Comrole over Fin.lmcial Reporting and the S1lmdanls on Audiling, is Ned by ICAI and 
deemed to be preec;ribed 1mder sec:Uon 143(10) of !he Companilltl Act, 2013, to !he extent appli.cablo to an 
IIUititofintemal finan.cial comrols, bo1h lll'Plicable to an audit ofintema1 Financial ColllrO'ls and, boCh issued 
by the Institute ofebarmedAecounlllnl! of India. Those Standanls and !he Guiclance Notcr:equil:e that we 
comply with e1hical requiremeadll 8Dd plan 8Dd perform 1he audit to ob!ain n:asonable essamnce aboot 
whether adequate inmma1 financial comrols over financial RlpOlting was eatablished and maintained and if 
IJUchcomroleoperatedelfectivelyinall.materialmpec18. 
Our audit involves performiog procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the imem.al 
financial contro'ls !Jylltem ova: financial reporting 8Dd 1heir openlting effectiveness. Our sudit of intx:mal 
financial conttols over financial reportin,g ineludedobfaining an 1mdmitanding ofintemal financial controls 
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over fiDa:oAaJ. reporting, llll8alllillg the risk dlat a materi!IJ. W"me.., c:xia18, and 1artiDg and evalualillg the 
c!Mip and operatinJ efW:tiveness of internal comrol based on the assessed risk. The pn: .. :edml!:!l selected 
depend on lhe llllditor's jndgment, inclu.diDg lhe aasesllll!ellt of~ risb of material miastatement of the 
financialsl:ldmlenta. Viheth« clue to fnlud ormor. 
We believe !hat !he audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient. and app:op:riate to provide a baais for our 
audit opinion on the Company's imemal financial controls system over financial comtrols w:i1h refemu:e to 
standalonofinancial statem«nts. 

MeantnaofiDterDIIJ RoanmJ controloftl' tin.lncill ReponJna 
A wmpany's imemal financial control over financial Iepo< ling is a process de$iped to provide reasonable 
~ regarding 1he reliability of finlmciaJ. IqJOitiDg and 1he Jm:P111111ion of Aaodalonc financial 
stab:mt1Jlt5 fur external purpoee8 in ~with generally~ accounting principles.A company's 
intemalfinancialcolltrolovl!l'financial.II!pOrtinginc:lude!thOIIOpoliciosandprocedun!sdlat 

(1) pertaiD. to 1he m.aintcnanee of rewnl81hat, in reasonable de1ail, IICCIIl'&tely and flWty reflect 1he 
1rlmsactionsanddisposmonsofthoas..wlllofthowmpany; 

(2) provide rea110.11able a&1J111:8111Ce 1hat U'allsactiODB are teW!ded as II.C( : mry to permit p.rquntion of 
stllndalono financial sta1emenlll in accordance with genemlly accepted a.ccolmting principles, and 
1hatn:ceiptsandes:penditmesoflhewmpanyarebeingma.deonlyinaccordancewithauthorizations 
ofmaaagem.entftlld~tors oflhe compmy; and 

(3) Provide ~W~Dna'ble a&SUliii1.Ce reganlillg preveution or timely detection of UI1JIIIIhorized ~on. 
UBe, 01 diaposition of !he company's 888CI8 that wuld have a malaial c:ffect on 1he slall.dalone 
financial sl3tlm!cm1s. 

lnhrent UmftatfonaofiDtemalFIIIIIndalControllover Fllumdal Reporting 
'B«ause of lhe illherent limitations of imemal financial Wlltrols over financial repo1 ling. ilu:ludiDg 1he 
possibility of wllua:ion or imptoper IDIIDIIgeiii"Tt ove:rride ofWIItrolB, material miastatementa du.e to Cll'OI'Ol' 

fnlud may oc:eur and not be datec:tod.. Also, projections of any eva!Jialion of lhe immual financial controls 
over financial repo1ting to 1\dure periods are 8\lbject to 1he riaJc that 1he iDtemal financial comtrol ov« 
financial tepo1ting may bewme inadequate bec:auae of changes in conditiOD.B, 01' dlat !he degree of 
compliaw:ewiththepoliciesorproceduresmaydete:riorate. 

For RAG &Associates 
ChartaedAccountanl8 
ICAI Film Registration lliiiiiber: 0086S3C 

-sd-
CANikbil Gupta 
Pllltnm: 
Man'belahipNo: 541696 
lnDEN:22541696~9566 

Place: Noida 
Date: 30thMay, 2022 



Capfin India Limited 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

ASSETS 
Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Loans 
Investments 
Other financial assets 

Non- financal assets 
Current Tax Assets (Net) 
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 
Property, plant and equipment 
Investment Property 
Other non- fmancial assets 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 
LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 

Other payables 
Borrowings 

Equity 
Equity share capital 
Other equity 

Total Liabilities and Equity 

Summary of significant accounting policies 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements 

Audit Report as on even date attached 
For RAG & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:008653C) 

CA Nikhil Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No.: 541696 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30.05.2022 
UDIN: 22541696AJWLZN9566 
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Notes As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 

2 1,18,879 1,96,024 
3 1,50,69,993 1,81,77,980 
4 91,71,072 90,86,967 
5 17,87,316 -

2 6147.261 2 74 60 971 

6 1,49,843 1,05,689 
7 1,00,806 1,90,913 
8 1,859 1,859 
9 23,98,970 24,43,463 
10 1 70 273 110478 

28.21,751 28,52,402 

2,89,69,012 3,03,13,373 

11 1,26,800 76,500 
12 - 1,50,000 

1.26.800 2.26 500 

13 2,86,47,000 2,86,47,000 
14 1,95,212 14,39,873 

2.88.42.212 3 00 86.873 

2,89,69,012 3,03,13,373 

1 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

-sd-
Rachita Mantry Kabra 
Director 
DIN: 03414391 

-sd-
Priyanka Chaudhary 
Company Secretary 

-sd-
Sarita Mantry 
Director 
DIN: 01111382 



Capfm India Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

I. Revenue from Operations (Gross) 
Dividend income 
Net gain/ (loss) on fair value changes 
Interest income 
Rental income 

Total revenue from operations 

Other income 

II. Total Income 

Fees and commission expense 
Employee benefit expense 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Others expenses 

m. Total Expenses 

rv. Profit before Tax (II - III) 

V. Tax Expenses 

- Current tax 
- Deferred tax 

VI. Profit for the Period (IV-V) 

Other Comprehensive income 

Notes 

15 
16 
17 

18 

19 
20 

21 

22 

VII. Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent 
periods 

Changes in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments 14 
Income Tax impact 

VIII. Net other comprehensive loss not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent periods 

Total comprehensive income (VI+ VIII) 

Earning Per Equity Share (Face Value ~.10/-each) 

-Basic 
-Diluted 

Summary of significant accounting policies 1 

See accompanying notes to the f'mancial statements 

Year Ended 
Mareh 31,2022 

21,125 
(94,008) 

12,71,984 
97,402 

4,90,586 

17,87,089 

5,14,613 
5,45,000 

44,493 
2,23,218 

13.27,324 

4,59,765 

90,107 

55,155 
34,352 

3,69,658 

(16,14,319) 

(16,14,319) 

(12,44,661) 

0.14 
0.14 

Year Ended 
Mareh 31,2021 

-
-

13,83,803 
46,000 

70,505 

15 00,308 

4,22,408 
3,82,000 

44,886 
2,14,848 

10 64.142 

4,36,166 

48,696 

9,301 
39,395 

3,87,470 

(34,74,352) 

(34, 74,352) 

(30,86,883) 

0.14 
0.14 

Audit Report as on even date attached 
For RAG & Associate. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Diredon 

Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:0086S3C) 

-sd-
CA Nikbll Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No.: 541696 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30.05.:ZO:Z:Z 
UDIN : 2Z541696AJWLZN9566 
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-sd-
Racbita Mantry Kabra 
Diredor 
DIN: 03414391 

-sd-
Priyanka Chaudhary 
Company Secretary 

-sd-
Sarita Mantry 
Director 
DIN : 01111382 



Capfin India Limited 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

I. Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
Profit I (loss) before tax 

Depreciation and amortisation 
Finance costs (including fair value change in financial instruments) 
Profit on sale of investment 

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes 

Movements in working capital : 
Increase/(Decrease) in Other payables 
Decrease I (Increase) in Non Financial assets 
Decrease I (Increase) in Loans 
Decrease I (Increase) in Other Financial assets 

Cash Generated From Operations 
Less : Direct Tax paid ( net of refunds) 
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

D. Cash Flow from Investing Activities: 

Proceeds from sale of investments 
Purchase of investments 
Sale of investments 

Net cash flow (used In) investing activities 

ill. Net Cash Flow From Financing Activities: 
Borrowing taken/paid during the year 

m. Net cash flow (used in) fmancing activities 

IV. Net (decrease) I In cash and cash equivalents (I+ll+lll) 

Cash and cash equivalents (Opening) 

N tes For the year ended For the year ended 
0 

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

4,59,765 4,36,166 

44,493 44,886 
67,907 

(4,90,229) 

81,936 4,81,052 

50,300 (3,38,900) 
(59,795) 12,634 

31,07,987 (9,302) 
(17,87,316) (54,992) 

13,93,112 1,45,484 
(44,154) (85,869) 

13,48,958 59,615 

40,000 
(2,34,50, 709) 
2,21,34,607 

(12,76,102) 

(1,50,000) 

(1,50,000) 

(77,144) 59,615 

1,96,024 1,36,409 

1,18,880 1,96,024 

Audit Report as on even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For RAG & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN: 008653C) 

-sd-
CA Nikhil Gupta 
Partner 
Membenhip No.: 541696 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30.05.2022 
UDIN : 22541696AJWLZN9566 

-sd-
Rachita Mantry Kabra 
Director 
DIN: 03414391 

-sd-
Priyanka Chaudhary 
Company Secretary 
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Director 
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Capfin India Limited 
Statement of Chuga in Equity for the period ended Mardi 31, lOll 
(Ail8IIIOUDt in rupees) 

(b) Other equity 

For the year ended March 31, 2022: 

As at 31 Mareh 2020 
Profit for the year 
Other ComprehenBive income 
As at 31 Mareh 2021 
Profit for the year 
Other ComprehenBive income 
As at 31 Mareh 2022 

Note 2: Cash and cash equivalents 

Particulars 

Cashon hand 

Balances with banks 

Attributable to the ni shareholden 
Reserves and Surplus 

Capital Relerve Retained earnillp 
36,8!1,369 7,17,7ff1 

3,87,470 

36,8!1,369 11,05,177 
3,69,658 

- 14,74,835 

Other Comprehensive IDeome 

Equity butnunentl through 
other comprehensive lneome Total 

1,1!1,679 45,26,755 
3,87,470 

(34, 74,352) (34, 74,352) 
(33,54,673) 14,3!1,873 

3,69,658 
(16,14,319) (16,14,319) 
(49,68,991) 1,95,212 

As at As at 
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021 

72,651 11,651 

46,229 1,84,373 

1,18,879 1,96,024 

Balances with banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. The Company has not taken bank overdraft, 
therefore the cash and cash equivalent for cash flow statement is same as cash and for cash equivalent given above 

Note 3: Loans 
As at As at 

Particulars March 31,2022 March 31,2021 

Term loans: 

Corporate lending 1,39,49,993 1,71,77,980 

Small business lending 11,20,000 10,00,000 

Total- Gross 1,50,69,993 1,81,77,980 

Less: Impairment loss allowance - -
Total-Net 1,50,69,993 1,81,77,980 

(a) Secured by tangible assets (property, plant and equipment including land and 
building) 
(b) Unsecured 1,50,69,993 1,81,77,980 

Total- Gross 1,50,69,993 1,81,77,980 
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Capfin India Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

Note 4: Investments 

1Dve1tment11 in India 
Equity Instruments 
Others 
Total gro11 (A) 

Less: Allowance for ImpllimH:nt loss (B ) 

Total Net D =(A) -(B) 

lnve•tmentllla India 
Equity Instruments 
Othen 
Total gnJII (A) 

Le~~s: Allowance for Impairment loss (B ) 

Total Net D • (A) -(B) 

75,48,822 16,22,250 91,71,072 91,71,072 

7!1,48,822 16,22.2!10 911711072 911711072 

75,48,822 16,22.250 911711071 911711072 

90,86,967 90,86,967 90,86,967 

901~67 9018~67 901~67 

90,86,967 90,86,967 90,86,967 

The Company has designated its equity investments as FVOCI on the basis that these are not held for trading and held for strategic purposes. 

Note 5: Other financial assets 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

Security Deposit Against Rent 10,000 -
Other receivables 17,77,316 

Total 17,87,316 -

Note 6: Current tax assets (Net) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 
Current Tu Assets 

Tax deducted at source receivable (Net of Provision for taxation) 1,49,843 1,05,689 

Total 1,49,843 1,05,689 

Note 7: Deferred tax assets (Net) 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31,2021 
Deferred Tax Assets 

Mat credit entitlement - 21,576 

Depreciation 1,00,806 1,69,337 

Gain /loss on equity instrument designated at FVOCI -
1,00,806 1,90,913 

Net Deferred Tax Assets 1,00,806 1,90,913 
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Caplin India Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31,2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

Note 8: Property and equipment 

Gross block 
At 31st March 2020 

Additions 
Disposals 

At 31st March 2021 

Additions 
Disposals 

At 31st March 2022 

Accumulated depreciation 
At 31st March 2020 

Depreciation expense 
Disposal 

At 31st March 2021 

Depreciation expense 
Disposal 

At 31st March 2022 

Note 9: Investment property 

Information regarding Income and expenditure of Investment property 

Particulars 
Rental income derived from investment lliOOerties 

Mobile Phone 
3,398 

-
-

3,398 

-
-

3,398 

Mobile Phone 
1,563 

393 

1,956 

-

1,956 

Direct nneratina: expenses (including repairs and maintenance) that did not generate rental income 
Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and indirect eJpenses 
Less - Depreciation 
Profit arising from investment properties before indirect expenses 

Laptop Total 
4,279 8,184 

- -
- -

4,279 8,184 

- -
- -

4,279 8,184 

Laptop Total 
3,862 5,932 

393 

-
3,862 6,325 

-
-

3,862 6,325 

31-Mar-12 31-Mar-21 
97,402 46,000 

- -
97,402 46,000 

(44,493 (44,493) 
52,909 1,507 

The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment property and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment 
property or for repairs, maintenance and enhancements. The fair market value of the property on the basis of quotes received from the various buyers is around 
INR 36Lakhs (aprroximately) ( PY: INR 34Lakhs) on the year ending on 31st March, 2021 and 31st March, 2022. 
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Capfin India Limited 
Notes to Flnaneial Statements as at March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

Note 10: Other non financial assets 

Particulars 
Balances with statutorv/Kovcrnmcnt authorities 

Total 

NtellB 

Particulars 
Term loans 
- From Director (Unsecured) 
Total 

- Within India 
- Outside India 
Total 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 

1 70.273 110 478 

170.273 110478 

As at As at 
March 31, 2022 Man:h 31, 2021 

- 150000 
- 1,50,000 

- 1,50,000 
- -
- 1,50,000 

The loan outstanding on March 31, 2021 was an unsecured interest free short term loan and was repayable on demand. 

Note 13: Issued Capital and reserves 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Authorised 
40 00 000 Eauitv Shares ofiNR 10 each 4,00,00,000 4,00,00,000 
I (Previous year 40 00 000 Eauitv Shares ofiNR 10 each) 

4 0000 000 4 0000,000 
Issued: 
34 50 000 Equity Shares ofiNR 10 each 3,45,00,000 3,45,00,000 
I (Previous year 34 50,000 Equity Shares ofiNR 10 each) 

3 4500 000 3 4500 000 

Subscribed and fully paid up: 
28 64 700 Eauity Shares ofiNR 10 each 2,86,47,000 2,86,47,000 
I (Previous year 28 64 700 Eauity Shares ofiNR 10 each) 

2 86.47,000 2,86.47,000 

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year 

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 
Particulars No. of shares Amount No. ofshares Amount 

Atthebe~~ofthev~ 28,64,700 2,86,47,000 28,64,700 2,86,47,000 
Issued durin2 the year 
Outstandine: at the end of the year 28,64.700 2 86,47 000 28,64,700 2,86.47,000 
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Capfin India Limited 
Notes to Financial Statements as at March 31, 2022 
(All amount in rupees) 

b. Terms/ rights attaclled to equity shares 
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value ofiNR. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The company 
declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual 

General Meeting. 
In the event ofliquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all 
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. 

c. Detalls of 1hareholden holcUng more than 58/o 1hares In the company 

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2021 
Particulars No. of shares %ofholding No. ofshares %of holding 

!Equity shares ofRs 10 each 
Focus Stock Brokers Limited 2,26200 7.89 2,26200 7.89 

Total 2,26,200 7.89 2,26,200 7.89 

d. Details of promoter's shareholding 

Sarita Mantrv - Promoter 
At the beginning of the year 155710 5.44% 1,25,710 4.39% 
% change during the year 16478 0.06% 30000 1.05% 
Outstanding at the end of the year 172188 6.01% 155710 5.44% 

Dlnesh Kumar Mantrv- Promoter Grouu 
At the beginning of the year - - - -
% change during the year 123700 4.31% - -
Outstandina at the end of the year 123700 4.31% - -

I 

As at As at 
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 
Other equity: 

Caoital Reserve 36 89369 36 89 369 

Retained earnings 11,05,177 7,17,707 
Add:Profit durirur; the vear 3 69658 3 87 470 
Add: Other adjustments 

14,74,835 11,05,177 

Other comprehensive income (33,54,673) 1,19,679 
Add: chan2e11 durin2 the year (16,14,319) (34,74,352) 

(49,68,992) (33,54,673) 

Total 1,95,212 14,39,873 

Nature and purpose of reserves 

Other comprehensive income 
The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in equity securities in other comprehensive income. These changes are 
accumulated within the FVOCI equity investments reserve within equity. The Group transfers amounts from this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant 
equity securities are dcrecognised. 

Capital Reserve 
This pertains to the amount ofRs36,89,369 realised by the company due to forfeiture of shares made during the Financial Year 2015-16 
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Note 15: Dlvldelld Income 

~ M!J\ffilii 
Dividtmd income 

Note 18: Other income 
' articulan 

111-on Jru:ome Tax Refilnd 
MUcinoome 
Profit on Sale oflllveotrnenta 

Total 

Note : 19 Feel aad coDUD!uloll npeue 

Total 

Note : 20 Employee bellefit npeue 

Total 

Note: 21 Other~-

' 
AuditF0011 
Bank Chargea 
Conveyance 

Bad debta written off 
Repeir & Mainlnance : Flat Fumitute 
E-Vo1inJl Expenses 
General Meeting Expelues 
Lei!al & Profeslional ~ 
Miscellaneous Expenses 
Vehicle Expenses 
Postage & Courier 
Printing & Stationary 
Publication 
srum. 'I'nmsfer and Registmation &p..,.... 

Rent 
Telephone and po•tage Expelues 
Website Bx1lense 
Short & 1lxt:e&o 

Ratet and Taxes 

Total 

31-Mar-ZZ 31-Mar-Z1 

21,125 I .I 
nns 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

1105 
357 69400 

4 90,229 

4,!10,586 7D,505 

31-Mar-22 

5,14,613 48408 

31-Mar-22 

3.22,000 
65,1100 60000 

5,45,000 3,82,000 

33,600 10,000 
42097 1947 

- SO,S40 
11491 -

- -
- 17700 
- -

46582 2500 
10,047 -

- -
- 15,480 
- 12,450 
- 29,244 

- -
72000 72,000 

- 2987 
7400 -
- -
- -

2,23,218 214,848 
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Notes to Ftaaaclal Statements as at Marcll31, lOll 
(All amount in rupees) 

Details of payments to auditors: 

Note: ll Tu Expenses 

Particulars 

Current tax 
Deferred Tax 

Total 

31-Mar-ll 

55,755 
34,352 

90,107 

a) Income tu related to items charged or credited directly to profit or loss during the year: 

Statement of profit or loss 31-Mar-ll 
Current income tu: 
Current income tax charl!:e 55755 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous vear 
Deferred tu: 
RelatinJ:t to oriJ:(ination and reversal of temporary differences 34352 

Tax expense 

23 Related Party transactions 

(A) Names of Related parties and nature of related party relationships 

Key management personnel 
Rachita Mantry-Managing Director 
Sarita Mantry - Director 
Ashok Mohta- Independent Director 
Sanjay Kukreja- Independent Director 
Rachita Mantry-CFO 
Priyanka Chaudhary-CS 

31-Mar-ll 

9,301 
39,395 

48,696 

31-Mar-21 

9301 

39395 

The following table provides the total amount due to or due from the related parties as on 31st March 2022 and 
31 March 2021 

Particulars 31 March, 2022 31 March, 2021 
Rachita Mantry 
Director Salary & Perks Payable 
Loan taken 
Total 
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Cap:lln India Limited 
Notes to Finandal Statementt u at Mareh 31, 1021 
(All amount in rupees) 

24 Segment Reporting 
The Company has a single operating segment that is ''providing loans to corporates and non-corporates". Accordingly, the segment revenue, 
segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities are reflected by the financial statements themselves as at and for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2022. 

Entity wide disclosures: 

I. Information about products and services: 
The Company,s major line ofbusiness of''providing loans to corporates and non-corporates" and earn interest income on the same. 

II. Geographic Informations: 
The company operates presently in the business of providing loans to corporates and non-corporates in India. Accordingly, revenue from 
customers and all assets are located in India only. 

m. Information about major customers: 

The number of customers who contributed more than 68% of the revenue individually during the year ended 31st March 2022 were 864544 
and the number of customers during the year ended 31 March 2022 were 2 . Revenue from these customers was INR 8,64,544 and INR 
8,20,000 during the year ended 31st March 2022 and 31 March 2021 respectively. 

2S Contingent Liabilities and Commitments 

The company has nil contigent liabilities and no commitments for the year ended on March 31, 2022. 

26 Financial risk management 

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. This note explains the sources of risk 
which the entity is exposed to and how the company manages the risk. The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The Company board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's risk management framework. 

1. Market Risk 

(a) Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt obligations with floating interest rates. 

The company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and investing in fixed interest instruments. 

(b) Foreign eurrency risk 
The Company does not have significant exposure in currency other than INR. 

2. Liquidity Risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by 
delivering cash or another financial asset. 

The Company's objective is to, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely 
monitors its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. 

The contractual maturities of the Company's financial liabilities are presented below: 

fTTI<Jf'lll~ i'l~{l • iii urTi • IP.':....rJii' I 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings-Principal Payable I I I I I 
ExPenses Pavable I I I 1268001 I 
Tob.l I - I - I 1.16.800 I - I 

· fTTI<Jf'!lc i'l~~l/~1 • iTi . IP.'~ii:1 

Interest-bearing loans and barrowinJlii-Principal Payable I I I I 1500001 
Expenses Payable I I I 76 soo I I 
Tob.l I - I - I 76 500 I 1.50 000 I 

3. Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, 

There are no impairment losses on financial assets to be recognised in statement of profit and loss as on 31 March 2021 and for the comparative period 
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. 
as on 31 March 2020. 

Trade and other receivables: The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The 

management does not expect any significant credit risk out of exposure to trade and other receivables. Accordingly company does not expect any 
impairment loss on trade receivables. 
Cash and cash equivalents: The company held cash and cash equivalents of INR 1,18,879 as at 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: INR 1,96,023 .75). 

The cash and cash equivalents are held with public sector banks and leading private sector Bank. There is no impairment on cash and cash equivalents 
as on the reporting date and the comparative period. 
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Capfm India Limited 
Notes to financial statements 
(Amount in INR, unless otherwise stated) 

27 Capital management 

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable 
to the equity holders of the parent. 

The Company aims to manage its capital efficiently so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise 
returns to its shareholders. 

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity so as to maintain investor, 
creditors and market confidence and to sustain future development and growth of its business. The Company will take appropriate 
steps in order to maintain, or if necessary adjust, its capital structure. 

28 Accounting classifications and fair value measurements 

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fmancial instruments by valuation 
technique: 

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's fmancial instruments 
that are carried in the financial statements: 

As at 31st March 2022, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value on the statement of fmancial position: 

ParticuJan 
Carrying amouat Fllrvalae Fair value 

31-Mar-11 31-Mar-ll Levell Levell Levell 
Fmancial aneCJ at amortlled ceat: 
Cash and cash equivalents 118 879 1,18 879 
Loans -
Investments I ,50,69,993 1,50,69,993 1,50,69,993 
Other financial assets 91,71,072 91,71,072 

Total 1,43,59,945 2,43,59,945 - - 1,50 69,993 

FIDucial Ilahllltiea at IIDOrtiHd cost: 
Other J)ayables 1,26,800 1,26,800 
BOl'l'OwingB (Other than debt securities) -
Total 1,16,1100 1,26,800 1,50,69,993 

As at 31st March 2021, the Company held the following financial instruments carried at fair value on the statement of financial position: 

Particulan 
Carrylag amount Fair value Fair value 

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-21 Levell Levell 
FIDucial aneCJ at amortlled ceat: 
Cash and cash equivalents 196 024 196024 
Loans 1,81,77,980 1,81,77,980 
Investments 1,22,99 04(i 90 86967 
Other financial assets 1,05,689 1,05,689 

Total 3,07,78,739 2,75,66,660 - -
FIDucial Ilabiiitlea at I!Dortbecl eost: 
Other Jlavables 76500 76 500 
BOIIOWings (Other than debt securities) 1,50,000 1,50,000 

Total 2,26,500 2,26,500 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, loans, bank deposits, trade payables 
and other financial liabilities are considered to be same as their fair values, due to their short term nature 
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29. Earninp Per Share (EPS) 
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 

INR INR 

a) Basic earning per share 
Basic earning per share attributable to the equity holders of the company 0.13 0.14 

b) Diluted earning per share 
Diluted eaming per share attributable to the equity holders of the eompany 0.13 0.14 

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ Ooss) for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of Equity shares 
outstanding during the year. 

Diluted EPS amouots are calculated by dividing the profit/ Ooss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number ofEquity shares outstanding during 
the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares. 

The foUowiag refleets the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations: 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company: 
Continuing operations 
Discontinued operation 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earninp 

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusted for the effect of dilution 

Weighted average number of Equity shares for basic EPS • 
Effect of dilution: 

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilation * 

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 
INR INR 

3,69,658 3,87,470 

3,69,658 3,87,470 

3,69,658 3,87,470 

28,64,700 28,64,700 

28,64,700 28,64,700 

• The weighted average number of shares takes into account the weighted average effect of changes in treasury share transactions during the year. There have been no other 

30. Leases 

Company has one contract for building falling within the scope of Ind AS 116. Short term leases refers to the leases having remaining period of 12 months from the intial date of 
application. In such cases, Company has availed the short term lease exemption available in Jnd AS 116 and and the lease payments associated with such leases are recognised as an 
expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The amouot recognised as expense on accouot of short term leases is INR 72,000. 

Audit Report as on even date attached 
For RAG & Associates 
Chartered Accountants 
(FRN:008653C) 

-sd-
cA NikhU Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No.: 541696 
Place: New Delhi 
Date: 30.05.2022 
UDIN : 22541696AJWLZN9566 
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-sd-
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Company Secretary 

-sd-
sarita Mantry 
Director 
DIN: 01111382 



IS. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I. Statement of Compliance 

In accordance with the notlficadon issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian 
Accounting Standards (referred to as "lnd AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015. read with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("the Act") with effect from 1st April, 2016. 

Tho Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the lnd 
AS issued and effective as at the reporting date. Previous periods have been restated in line with Jnd AS. 

II. Basis ofPrcparation of Financial Statements: 

The financi:~l statements have been prepared and present~d based on going concern under the historical cost 
convention on an accrual basis except for certain financial instruments which are mensured at fair value at the 
end of each reported period as explained in other accounting policies. The assets and liabilities have been 
classified ascurrentor non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria set out In the 
Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013. 

Com puny's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees wh1ch is also its functional currency. 

iii. Use of Estimates and Judgment 

The preparation of financial statements requires to exercise. judgment and estimates and assumptions to be 
made that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities on the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. These est imates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Difference between the acrual results and estimates are 
recognized in the period inwhlch the results are known/ materialized. 

The areas involving significant estimates and judgment include determination of useful life of propertY. plant 
and equipment and measurement of defined benefit obligation~. 

iv. Financial Instruments 

A financial instrument in any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability or 
equityinstrument of another entity. 

Financial Assets: 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement: 

On Initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value. In case of financial asset which are recognized 
at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL). its transaction cost are recognized In the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. while In other cases the lransacrlon cost are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 

(b) Subsequent Measure ment: 
Financial Assets are subsequently classified as measured at (i) Amortised cost, (!i) Fair value through Profit and 
Loss (FVTPL) & (iii) Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI).Financlal Assets are not 
reclassified subsequentto their recognition, except in the period when the Company changes its business model 
for managing the financial assets. 
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Financial Assets at Amortised Cost 
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost, If these financial assets are held within a 
business whose objective is to hold these assets to collect contractual cash flows and tho contractual terms of 
financial assetS give nse on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments ofprlnclpaland interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through other Comprehensive Income 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, if these financial assetS are 
held within a business whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates 
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding and selling financial 
assets. 

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Pt·ofit and Loss 
Financial assets are measured at fair value through Profit and Loss unless it i5 measured atamortizedcost or at 
FVOCI on Initial recognition. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise cash on hand and balance with banks which arc subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in value. 

(c}Derecognition: 
The company derecognizes a financJal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 
asset expire, or ittransferthe contractual rlghltO receive the cash flows from the assets. 

Financial Llabllldes: 

(a) Initial Recognition and Measurement 
On initial recognition all financidl liabllitles are recognized at fair value and in case ofloans and borrowiu~~. uet 
of directly attributable transaction costs. 

(b) Subsequent Measurement: 
Financial liabilities are subsequently classified as measured at amortized cost or fair value through Profit and 
Loss. 

Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EI R) method. 
Financialllabllltles carried at fair value through profit and loss are measured ;;~t fa ir· value with all changes In fair 
valuerecognized in the StatementofProfit and Loss. 

(c) Derecognitlon: 
The company derecognizes a financlalliablhty when the obligation under the liubillty is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. 

v. Cash Flow Statement 

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 
cash flows from operating. investing and financing activities of the company are segregated based on the 
available information. 

vi. Property, Plant& Equipment: 
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Property, plant & equipment are stated at cost and net of recoverable taxes less accumulated depreciation. Cost 
of acquisition Is inclusive offreight, duties, taxes and other Incidental expenses. 

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at bal;:mce sheet date to determine, if there is any indication of 
impairment based on external/internal factors. 

Upon first time adoption ofln d AS, the company has elected to measure all its Property, Plant and Equipment al 
the Indian GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to lnd AS, i.e. 1st April. 2016. Gains 
or losses arising from derecognition of a property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
and loss when the asset is derecognized. 

vii. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition and net of recoverable taxes less accumulated amortization. 

viii. Depreciation 

Depreciation on property, plantand equipment is being provided on the straight line method as per useful life of 
the assets specified in schedule-II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
individually costing Rupees Five thousand or less Is provided@ 100%. Depreciation on additions f deductions 
is provided on prorate ba<;i<;. 

In case of impairment, if any, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assets over its 
remaininguseful life. 

x. lnventories 

Course material is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined by including material cost, 
and other expenditure directly attributable to its acquisition. Work in progress is valued at lower of estimated 
cost and netrealizablevalue. Course material in transit is valued at cost 

x. Revenue RecognltJon 

(a) Interest Income: 
Interest income Is recognized on a time proportion basis taken Into account the amount outstanding and the 
rate applicable. 

xl. Taxes on Income 

Income tax expense comprises of Current Tax and Deferred TaJ<. It Is recognized In the Statement of Profit& Loss 
except to the extent It relates to an Item which Is recognized directly in Equity or in Other Comprehensive 
Income, in which case, the same are recognized therein. 

Current tax is ascertained based on taxable income computed in accordance with prov1s1ons of the Income-tax 
Act,l961.The deferred tax for timing difference between the book income and taxable income for the year is 
accounted using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet 
date. Deferred taxassets arising from the timing difference are recognized to the extent there is reasonable 
certainty that sufficient fuh1re taxable Income will be :lV:lil:lble. 

xll. Foreign Currency Tra nsactions: 
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Transactions of purchases, expenditure and Income fn foreign currency arc accounted for a[ [he rate of 
exchange prevailing on the date of receip[ of invoice and/or other relcv:lnt documents and the difference 
between this amount and the actual amount paid Is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Current 
liabilities and assets are translated 
at the yearend rate and the difference Is charged w the Statement of Profit and Loss. There are no foreign 
currency transactions during year. 

xlll. Provisions and Contingent Uabilllles/ Assets: 

A provision is recognized when there Is a present obligation as a result of pastevent and it is probable that an 
outflow of a resource will be required to settle the obligatmn in respectofwhich a reliable esrllllate can be made. 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed after an evaluation of the fact and legal aspects of the matter involved. 
Contingent assets are not recogni11ed but disclosed by way of a brief description when an inflow of benefit is 
probable and if estimate of its financial effect is practicable. The provisions. contingent liability and assets are 
reviewed ateachb:llance sheet date. 

xiv. Employees Benefits: 

Defined Contribution Plan 
Company's contribution paid/payable during the year to employees provident fund, family pension fund and 
ESICarerecognised in thestatementofProfitand Loss. 

Liability on account of encashment of leaves to employees, considered <Js short term compensated expen~e. ts 
provided at year end In the statement of Profit and Loss and Is paid in subsequent year. The provisions of the 
same are not applicable on the company. 

Defined Benefit Plan 
Post-employment long term employee benefit in form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plan and is 
provided in accounts as determined on Actuarial basis using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance 
sheet date. 
Service Cost (Both Current and Past) and Net Interest Expenses or Income is recognl~ed as expenses In the 
StatementofProfltand Loss. 

Any difference between the Interest mcome on plan assets and the return actually achieved and any changes in 
the liabilities over the year due to change<: in actuarial assumptions or experitmce adjustment within the plans 
are recognized immediately in Other Comp•·ehcnsive Income and subsequently not reclassified to the 
StatementofProfitand Loss. 

The Retirement Benefit Obligation recognized In the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined 
benefit obligation reduced by the Fair Value of the Pl::m Assets. The provisions of the same is not applicable on 
the company. 

xv.Leases: 

Assets taken on lease under which lessor effectively retains all significant risks and rewards or ownership have 
been classified as operating lease. Lease payments made under operating lease are recognized as expense in the 
Statement of Profit & Loss on straight line basis over the primary term of the lease as mentioned in the lease 
agreement 

xvi. lmpairment: 
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Financial Assets (Other than at Fair Value): 
The company assesses at each halance sheet date whether a financial asse t or a group of financial assets is 
Impaired in compliance oflnd AS 109 

Non-Financial Assets: 
lfinternaljexternallndlcation suggest that an .-.ssct of the company may be Impaired, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is determined on the balance sheet date and if it Is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount 
of asset is reduced to the said recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is measured as the higher of the fa ir 
value lesscost of disposal and value of use of such asset which Is determined by the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows. 

Assessment is also done at each balance sheet date as to whether there Is any indication that the impalrmt:nt 
loss recognized in prior period m:~y no longer exist or may be decreased, a reversal of an impairment loss for an 
ossctisrecognized in theStatementof Profit and Loss. 

xvii. Earnings per Share: 

Basic earnings per share Is computed by dividing the net profits for the year attributable to the equity 
shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 
For the purpose of calculating diluted e.-.rnings per share. the net profit attributable to equity shareholders and 
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period ls adjusted for the effects of all dilutive 
potentialequity shares. 

For RAG &bAssoclates 
Chartered Accountants 
I CAl Firm Registration uumber: 008653C 

-sd-
Nikhll Gupta 
Partner 
Membership No.541696 

Place: New Delhi 
D::tte: 30'" May, 2022 

UDIN: 22541696A)WLZN9566 
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